
14 June 2019

NOTICE OF MEETING

CHANDLER'S FORD AND HILTINGBURY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE
will meet on

Wednesday, 19 June 2019
beginning at

7:00 pm
in 

Toynbee Theatre, Toynbee School, Bodycoats Road, Chandler's Ford, SO53 2PL

TO: Councillor Alan Broadhurst (Chairman)
Councillor Tim Groves (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Margaret Atkinson Councillor Judith Grajewski
Councillor David Pragnell Councillor James Duguid

Staff Contacts: Laura Johnston, Senior Democratic Services Officer  Tel:023 8068 
8041;Please email: DemocraticServices@eastleigh.gov.uk to 
register to speak before the meeting .
Min Partner, Local Area Manager Tel: 023 8068 8439; Email: 
min.partner@eastleigh.gov.uk

GAETANA WISEMAN
Performance and Governance Manager

_____________________________________________________________________

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the 
Council's website -

https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk
as well as in other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and 

other languages, upon request.

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the 
start of the meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the 

item is discussed.  To register please contact the Democratic 
Services Officer above.

Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, 
sound recording and photography at meetings open to the public, and 
Councillors will be using tablet devices to access committee papers.

Eastleigh House
 Upper Market Street
Eastleigh SO50 9YN

https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk/


AGENDA

1. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 4) 

To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 13 March 2019. 

2. Apologies    

3. Declarations of Interest     

Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 

4. Public Participation    

5. Chairman's report    

6. Local Area Manager's Report and  Items from Member Working Group    (Pages 5 
- 88)

7. Presentation on Planning Guidelines    

8. Planning Application - 9 Valley Road, Chandler's Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 1GQ    
(Pages 89 - 136) 

Construction of 4No, two bedroom, 5No. three bedroom and 3No. four bedroom 
dwellings with associated amenity space and parking, following demolition of 
existing care home (Ref: F/18/84154).
 

9. Planning Application - 85 Hocombe Road, Chandler's Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 5QB    
(Pages 137 - 144) 

Two storey side and front extensions, single storey side extension, raised patio at 
Rear, front & rear dormers  and alterations to fenestration (Ref: H/19/85372).
 

10. Chandler's Ford and Hiltingbury Various Order Report    (Pages 145 - 150) 

An amendment is proposed to the current consolidated Chandler’s Ford and 
Hiltingbury Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) to prevent obstructive parking on Meon 
Crescent. 

11. North Millers Dale Traffic Study    (Pages 151 - 158) 

Proposals to reinforce the current speed limit using the range of measures as 
outlined in the report. 

12. Appointments to Outside Bodies    (Pages 159 - 162) 

Chandler’s Ford Community Association - 2019/20 nomination Councillor D 
Pragnell

Hiltingbury Community Association - 2019/20 nomination Councillor J Duguid



North Millers Dale Community Association - 2019/20 nomination Parish Councillor 
P Holden-Brown
 

13. Appointments to Regulatory Panels and Other Groups     

Eastleigh Borough Council/Test Valley Liaison Group – 2019/20 nominations 
Councillors Broadhurst and Grajewski

Regulatory Panel – all members of the Committee to be appointed to a pool for all 
licensing appeals from which any three can be selected. 
 

14. Planning Appeals     

The Legal Services Manager to report:-

(a) that the following appeals have been lodged:-

Appeal against the Council’s refusal of planning persmission for a partial loft 
conversion - Roof alterations to rear including re-positioning of existing 
dormer and enlargement to existing roof light at 29 Nichol Road, Chandler’s 
Ford,SO53 5AY.

This was a delegated decision.

(b) that the following appeals have been dismissed:-

Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant consent to undertake work to a 
tree protected by a Tree Preservation Order (No. 436) on land in the corner 
of the rear garden of 26 Keble Road, immediately behind the appeal 
property (54 The Crossways, Chandler’s Ford, SO53 3BU).

This was a delegated decision.

Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant planning permission for the 
change of use of existing detached garage with accommodation over to 
from 1No 1bedtoom detached dwelling with insertion of 2 number velux 
windows to side at 63 Chalvington Road, Chandler’s Ford, SO53 3DY.

This was a delegated decision. 

Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news -

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Wednesday, 18 September 2019 at 7:00 pm
at The Dovetail Centre, Methodist Church, 

Winchester Road, Chandler's Ford, SO53 2GJ



Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


1

CHANDLER'S FORD AND HILTINGBURY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 13 March 2019  (7:00 pm – 8:47 pm)

PRESENT:

Councillor Broadhurst (Chairman); Councillors Groves, Atkinson, 
Grajewski, Hughes and Pragnell

________________________________________

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY)

29. MINUTES

RESOLVED -

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 16 January 2019 be noted.

30. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on 
the agenda.

31. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

There was no public participation on this occasion.

32. CHAIRMAN'S REPORT

The Chair sent condolences to those affected by the death of the local resident 
recently killed in Chandler’s Ford that took place on 10 March 2019. Members 
joined the Chair in passing on their condolences. 

The Committee wished to note their congratulations to those who partook in the 
Eastleigh Sports Awards. Particular mention was made of Maisie Stocks who 
received the Outstanding Personal Achievement Award, Janna Maunder who 
received the Junior Disability Sportsperson Award and Toynbee School for 
receiving School of the Year (Secondary) Award.

33. HILTINGBURY LAKES REPORT

The Committee considered a report by the Direct Services Manager and the 
Local Area Manager.  The Committee were advised on the background of the 
report and the recommendations put forward.  

RESOLVED that - 

(1) Developer contributions available to this Committee totalling 
£135,000 be allocated to projects to refurbish and enhance 
Hiltingbury Lakes.

1

Agenda Item 1



2

(2) The projects be implemented and overseen by the Direct Services 
Manager

(3) The allocation of £125,000 of New Homes Bonus money to these 
projects be noted.

(4) The requirement for additional revenue funding to maintain the area, 
once works are completed, be noted; and

(5) The programmes of work be widely publicised to ensure awareness 
and in order to assist public understanding of the benefits and long-
term outcome.

There were two speakers on this item making the following points:
 thanks were directed to the Direct Services Manager, the Leader and the 

Local Area Committee for promoting the project. 
 the recommendations were welcomed  as a way of enhancing open space 

for the community. However, it was important that a suitable budget was 
allocated for ongoing maintenance of the area.

 There was a great deal of community momentum which could be 
harnessed to help the Council manage the land

 particular concerns raised were the potential for increased parking, the 
need to remove brambles and the disturbance of rat habitats, possibly 
leading to problems for nearby properties

The Chair noted these comments and the Direct Services Manager responded, 
confirming that action would be taken to remove brambles and appropriately 
manage the rodent population.

34. NORTH MILLERS DALE TRAFFIC CONCERNS

The Committee considered a report by the Senior Engineering Specialist.  The 
Committee were advised on the background of the report and the following 
recommendations put forward:
 
(1) Speed Limit Reminders (SLRs) and Speed Data Recorders (SDRs) be 

deployed on North Millers Dale. 

(2) the road markings as shown in appendix 1 be implemented; and

(3) parking restriction measures be considered for inclusion in the 19/20 
various order if the issue is shown to be a reoccurring one

However, it was noted that Appendix 1 was missing from the report. Furthermore, 
Councillor Grajewski commented that the most significant problem in the area 
was parking rather than the speed of traffic. Councillor Atkinson proposed that 
the report should be deferred to the next meeting for to enable a comprehensive 
report to be provided. This was seconded by Councillor Grajewski and 
unanimously agreed. 

RESOLVED:

That the report be deferred to the next meeting to enable a comprehensive 
report to be provided.

2



3

35. CHANDLERS FORD AND HILTINGBURY VARIOUS ORDER REPORT

The Committee considered a report by the Senior Engineering Specialist.  The 
Committee were advised on the background of the report and various 
recommendations were put forward:

RESOLVED - to approve: 

(1) The implementation of the ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ 
restrictions on Springhill Road, Steele Close and Ribble 
Close. as advertised (Recommendation 1)

(2) The amendment of the restriction across the frontage of 37 
Fryern Close, removing this section from the order as a 
result of a resident’s objection (Recommendation 2)

(3) The implementation of the Bournemouth Road restriction of 
waiting times within the layby outside of No 13 to No 17. 
(Recommendation 6)

(4) The Charnwood Crescent proposal with amendments, as 
indicated on the attached plan (Additional Recommendation 
7). 

(5) The delegation to the Chair, Vice Chair, Leader of the 
Opposition and Environmental Lead Specialist to 
determine:

i.A review of Ford Avenue to include the northern end of 
the road and Tangmere Rise, before any order 
implementation (Recommendation 3)

ii.A review of Brook Close to include the turning head, 
before any order implementation  (Recommendation 4)

(6) The defereral until the next meeting for comprehensive 
information to be provided:

i.The Meon Crescent proposal with amendments, as 
indicated on the attached plan.

Councillor Grajewski asked that the Hiltingbury Road/Kingsway traffic 
oblique parking issues be investigated and brought to Committee as this 
had been raised by her on several previous occasions and she was 
concerned that it was not included in this report. 

There were two speakers on this item of business who made the following 
points:

 concerns were raised as to parking on the walkway creating 
difficulties gaining access to properties at the end of the road, 
particularly due to one of the speakers partial sight and use of a 
guide dog.

3



4

 further concerns were raised that parking at the entrance to the 
road prevents refuse collection as access cannot be obtained by 
refuse collectors.

M6098

4



CHANDLER'S FORD AND HILTINGBURY LOCAL AREA 
COMMITTEE 

Wednesday, 19 June 2019 

LOCAL AREA MANAGERS REPORT AND ITEMS FROM WORKING 
GROUPS

Report of the Local Area Manager

Recommendation(s)

It is recommended that  

(1) £1,740 be allocated from Developer contributions available to this Committee 
towards partnership funding of 10% to pump prime an application to Landfill 
Community Funds.

(2) The list of sites, shown at Appendix 1, be approved for the 2019/2020 traffic 
regulation order and traffic studies for this Committee.   This work is funded from 
this Committee’s annual budget for these works.

(3) The priority list of projects for the year 2019/2020 (Appendix 2) be approved and 
these schemes implemented as funds become available.

(4) £2000 be allocated from this Committee’s revenue funds to support Park Sport and 
Summer of Sport 2019 activities in the local area.

(5) £1300 be allocated from this Committee’s revenue funds to implement the 
2019/2020 Speed Limit Reminder programme.

 

Summary

This report identifies projects recommended by this Committee’s Member working group 
and those arising from existing priority work.  It identifies funding available for them. 

Statutory Powers

Section 137  Local Government Act 1972

5

Agenda Item 6



Eastleigh Borough Council

Strategic Implications 

1.  The projects and proposals in this report support the Councils strategic 
objectives of Local First, Healthy Community and providing an Excellent 
Environment for All

Introduction

2. Local Area Councillors have worked with partner organisations to identify 
projects and proposals to enhance Chandler’s Ford and Hiltingbury for 
residents and others who work in or visit the area.   

Pump-priming monies for bid to Landfill Community Funds

3. A ‘Safer Access to Schools’ pathway was recently installed, joining the 
Ashdown Road end of Hiltingbury recreation ground (‘the Rec’) to the 
Hiltingbury schools.  Subsequently,  Chandler’s Ford Parish Council put 
forward a request for monies to assist with pump-priming a bid for Landfill 
Community Funds to complete a network of footpaths on the Rec.  The 
proposed paths would be constructed of Type 1 compacted base and self-
binding gravel and would connect the newly installed one with the footpath at 
the other side of the Rec, via a route to go behind the skatepark and the multi-
use games area (‘MUGA’), as well as creating a footpath behind the new 
sports hall. This would be a total distance of some 400+ linear metres. The 
funds requested would contribute towards the 10% (£3,700) required as 
pump-priming for the bid.

The costs breakdown for the whole project (£37,000) is:  

HCC Match-funding to release Landfill Community Funds   2700.00 

EBC Match-funding to release Landfill Community Funds 1000.00 

Biffaward Landfill Community Funds 33300.00 

Total: 37000.00

Councillors identified this as a Top 2 priority, hence it is recommended to 
allocate £1K to the project.  The project will be in partnership with a third 
sector organisation – in order to achieve this, it will be necessary to have a 
contingency sum available of £740 to indemnify that partner against 
irrecoverable VAT on the pump-priming monies.  Hence it is recommended to 
allocate this further sum to the project, subject to it being required.

Traffic regulation order and traffic studies programme 

4. The list of locations proposed for the 2019/2020 traffic regulation order and 
two traffic studies is attached at Appendix 1.  Councillors are invited to 
approve this list.  

Priority projects

6



Eastleigh Borough Council

5. At a Member working group meeting, Councillors considered a lengthy list of 
ideas for projects which were put forward from sources (including the parish 
council) during the preceding year. The projects were prioritised for 
implementation as funding becomes available.  Councillors are invited to 
approve the recommendations, (as shown at Appendix 2) that arose from this 
exercise.  

Park Sport and Summer of Sport 2019

6. The summer of 2018 provided another very popular and successful series of 
events which enabled children and adults from the area to take part in a wide 
range of activities.  All the activities were ‘sustainable’ (ie, it was possible for 
participants to find local facilities where they could continue their chosen 
interests).  Funding was from a range of sources, including sponsorship. 
Councillors considered the outcome reports and recommended that funding 
from this Committee of £2000 should again be allocated to this project for the 
summer of 2019. 

Speed Limit Reminders 

7. Speed Limit Reminders are utilised in Chandler’s Ford and Hiltingbury (CFH) 
to assist in the reduction of speed on key roads in the area.  The locations are 
chosen by Councillors on advice from engineering staff.

The area has 26 deployments on the current 18/19 programme - 15 on the 
CFH Speed Limit Reminder (SLR)  and 11 on the Hampshire County Council 
(HCC) shared SLRs.  The cost is £50 per deployment making a total spend of 
£1300.

8. The current programme runs until July 2019.  In consideration of trigger data 
so far, shown at Appendices 3, 4 5 and 6 to this report, and taking into 
account the nature and make-up of the roads on the existing programme, 
advice is to keep these locations for the forthcoming programme. Councillors 
will  note that there have been 3 deployments NE on Winchester Road but 
only 1 SW.  Trigger data has been similar in both directions.  As a result, 
Councillors are invited to determine if they wish to alter this next year so as to 
have two deployments in each direction.  

9. Councillors are invited to approve the allocation of funding for the 2019/2020 
programme and to agree the list of sites, including any additions (at £50 per 
deployment) or changes to those currently proposed.                                       

10. The price will remain the same for the 19/20 programme which will commence 
on completion of the 2018/19 series of deployments. 

7



Eastleigh Borough Council

Financial Implications

11. Funding has been identified from monies available to this Committee to fund 
recommendations 1, 2, 4 and 5.  Priorities contained within recommendation 3 
will be implemented as funding becomes available.

Risk Assessment

12. If funding is not allocated, the projects will not proceed.  

Equality and Diversity Implications

The Equality Act is relevant to the decisions in this report as they relate to 
eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity, or fostering good 
relations between different people in the following ways: The decisions will 
result in an improvement for disabled people, young people, older people, 
women and children, all of whom are more likely to be pedestrians and be at 
risk from excessive speeds on local roads and to benefit from improved 
footpath networks.  They will benefit those who are less likely to take part in 
regular sports activities as there will be particular targeting of women, girls 
and disabled people in the summer sports and activities programmes. A full 
Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out, because while 
there are some equalities impacts, it is not proportionate to carry out a full 
EIA.

Conclusion

13. The schemes are aimed at enhancing the wellbeing and quality of life of local 
residents and others who visit or work in Chandler’s Ford and Hiltingbury. 
Councillors are invited to approve the recommendations.

MIN PARTNER
LOCAL AREA MANAGER

Date: 16th May 2019
Contact Officer: Min Partner 
Tel No:
e-mail: min.partner@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: 6

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.

None.

8



Eastleigh Borough Council
9



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1

TROs 2019/2020 -  Various Order

 Wellbrook Gardens/Swanton Gardens South Millers Dale

Peverells Wood Avenue

           Seymour Close

Richmond Close  

Park Road/Parklands Close

Hiltingbury Road

Morley Gardens

Linden Grove

Park Road junction with Hursley Road

Steele Close

Outside 46 Corinthian Road – verge/corner parking

2019/2020 – Full traffic studies

1. Oakmount Road – Northern exit of Beresford Road to include verge parking 
issues adjacent to Toynbee school’s remote playing fields/Fernhill) and verge 
parking near Fryern School entrance.

2. Pine Road 55-67

June 2019

11



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2

 Priorities for new projects from developer contributions.  

  Hiltingbury Lakes.         Remains as Priority 1

 Better disabled access at Hiltingbury Lakes (see above comment re feasibility study 
outcome). Included in Priority 1, (above)

 Asphalt paths on Hiltingbury Rec – contribution to 10% pump prime funding required to 
enable application for Landfill funding. Top Priority 2   

 Benches for public to rest on when travelling to and from local centres. Priority 2

 Daffodils under the trees adjacent to the path between Hursley Road and Sutherlands 
Court.   Priority 2

 Verge parking restrictions in problem spots. Priority 2

 All weather path Ramalley to Valley Park also connecting North Millers Dale.  Priority 2

 Sutherlands Way railway footbridge and rear of Shannon Way and Monmouth Close 
footpath need resurfacing. Priority 2

 Bushes and planting to encourage wildlife (to include trees). Priority 3 

June 2019

13



This page is intentionally left blank



CFH SLR ( 3530 )   (20/30/40 mph) 

 Installation Date  Removal date Location Ref Triggers / Comments 
09/07/2018 23/07/2018 Winchester Road (LC21) by Hillside Close CFH17 9282 
23/07/2018 06/08/2018 Hiltingbury Road (LC43), nr Oakwood Close CFH8 12747 
06/08/2018 20/08/2018 Oakmount Rd (LC34) nr Ridgeway Close CFH11 11421 
20/08/2018 03/09/2018 Hursley Road (LC14) Opp Sutherlands Way CFH15 7896 
03/09/2018 17/09/2018 Winchester Road (LC74), by Thornden CFH25 26991 
17/09/2018 01/10/2018 Park Road (LC12) nr Kings Rd CFH18 4471 
01/10/2018 15/10/2018 Winchester Road (LC73), by Thornden CFH33 28757 
15/10/2018 29/10/2018 Bodycoats Road (LC28), nr Cherwell Gdns CFH10 1887 
29/10/2018 12/11/2018 Winchester Road (LC74), by Thornden CFH25 30828 
12/11/2018 26/11/2018 Winchester Road (LC21) by Hillside Close CFH17 8390 
26/11/2018 10/12/2018 Hiltingbury Rd (LC 44)  Oakwood Close/Pine Rd CFH32 18291 
10/12/2018 21/12/2018 Bodycoats Road (LC28), nr Cherwell Gdns CFH10 1337 
21/12/2018 07/01/2019 Hursley Road (LC97) nr Rothville Place CFH36 10618 
07/01/2019 21/01/2019 Winchester Road (LC74) by Thornden CFH25 29672 
21/01/2019 04/02/2019 Baddesley Road (LC24) junc with North Millers D CFH37 15353 

15



CFH17      09/07/18 –23/07/18 
Winchester Rd, Chandler’s Ford – LC21 - South-westbound   30MPH 

16



CFH8                       23/07/18 - 06/08/18 
Hiltingbury Road, Chandlers Ford – LC43 – Eastbound traffic   30MPH 

17



CFH15      06/08/18 – 20/08/18 
Hursley Road, Chandlers Ford - Southbound traffic – LC14       30MPH 

18



CFH36                      20/08/18 - 03/09/18 
Hursley Rd, Chandlers Ford – LC97 – Opposite side - Southbound traffic  30MPH 

19



CFH25                      03/09/18 – 17/09/17 
Winchester Road, Chandlers Ford - Northeast bound traffic  - LC74    30MPH 

20



CFH18                   17/09/18 – 01/10/18 
Park Road, Chandlers Ford - Southbound traffic – LC 12                      30MPH 

21



CFH33                                    01/10/18 -15/10/18 
Winchester Road, Chandlers Ford – LC73 – SE bound traffic                                         30MPH 

22



CFH10                   15/10/18 – 29/10/18 
Bodycoats Road , Chandlers Ford - North-westbound traffic - LC28                    30MPH 

23



CFH25                      29/10/18 – 12/11/18 
Winchester Road, Chandlers Ford - Northeast bound traffic - LC74    30MPH 

24



CFH17      12/11/18 –26/11/18 
Winchester Rd, Chandler’s Ford – LC21 - South-westbound   30MPH 

25



 CFH32                     26/11/18 – 10/12/18 
 Hiltingbury Road, Chandlers Ford - Westbound traffic - LC 44   30MPH 

26



CFH10                   10/12/18 – 24/12/18 
Bodycoats Road , Chandlers Ford - North-westbound traffic - LC28                    30MPH 

27



CFH11                      24/12/18 - 07/01/19 
Oakmount Road, Chandlers Ford - Southbound traffic -  LC34    30MPH 

28



CFH25                      07/01/19 – 21/01/19 
Winchester Road, Chandlers Ford -  Northeast bound traffic - LC74    30MPH 

29



CFH37                      07/01/19 – 21/01/19 
Baddesley Road, Chandlers Ford -  South-westbound traffic – LC24    30MPH 

30



 
 

HCC SLR1(1297)  (30/40 mph) 

 
 
  

Installation 
Date  

 
Removal date Location Ref Triggers 

09/07/2018 23/07/2018 Hursley Road (LC37), C/Ford – by junction with Valley Rd CFH35 11955 
23/07/2018 06/08/2018 Woodside Avenue (LC41), Eastleigh ELAC12 11357 
06/08/2018 20/08/2018 Church Road, LC19 Bishopstoke BIFOHH26 2373 
20/08/2018 03/09/2018 Winchester Road (LC35), C/Ford – north of Fryern Arcade CFH21 18023 
03/09/2018 17/09/2018 Kings Copse Avenue (LC43), Hedge End      Opp Ferndale  HEWEB34 5025 
17/09/2018 01/10/2018 Fair Oak Road (LC9), Bishopstoke BIFOHH28 14629  (LC7 used) 
01/10/2018 15/10/2018 Moorhill Road (LC79), West End      Junc with Cheriton Ave HEWEB55 6236  (LC78 used) 
15/10/2018 29/10/2018 High Street, West End (LC76)          Opposite Hilldene Way HEWEB57 30032 
29/10/2018 12/11/2018 Bodycoats Road (LC6), C/Ford – by Hardwick Road CFH1 7551 
12/11/2018 26/11/2018 Alan Drayton Way  (LC12), Bishopstoke BIFOHH23 56318 
26/11/2018 10/12/2018 Chestnut Ave (LC24) Eastleigh ELAC7 16599 
10/12/2018 21/12/2018 Allbrook Hill (LC8) Eastleigh ELAC16 1561 
21/12/2018 07/01/2019 Templars Way (LC17) C/Ford – South of Montgomery Way CFH30 10835 
07/01/2019 21/01/2019 Mortimers Lane (LC18), Fair Oak BIFOHH15 38636 
21/01/2019 04/02/2019 Hiltingbury Road (LC61) Hiltingbury – outside H’bury School CFH9 6323 
04/02/2019 18/02/2019 Kings Copse Avenue (LC16), H/End      By school crossing  HEWEB9 7397  
18/02/2019 04/03/2019 Bournemouth Road (LC49) C/Ford – south of Westfield Rd CFH12 58118 
04/03/2019 18/03/2019 Winchester Road, Fair Oak LC36 BIFOHH1 18582 
18/03/2019 01/04/2019 Hamble Lane (LC131) Hamble  BHH8 43248 
01/04/2019 15/04/2019 Twyford Road (LC49) Eastleigh ELAC14 40612 
15/04/2019 29/04/2019 Bursledon Road (LC8C)  By recreation ground/paddling pool HEWEB36 
29/04/2019 13/05/2019 Church Road, Bishopstoke (LC43) BIFOHH29 
13/05/2019 27/05/2019 Merdon Ave (LC32) C/Ford – south of junc with Oakwood Rd CFH34 
27/05/2019 10/06/2019 Dodwell Lane (LC6)  BHH9 
10/06/2019 24/06/2019 Locke Road (LC6) Hedge End               By Walker Gardens  HEWEB40 
24/06/2019 08/07/2019 Derby Road (LC9) Eastleigh ELAC3 

31



CFH35                     09/07/18 - 23/07/18 
Hursley Road, Chandlers Ford – LC37 – Southbound traffic   30MPH 

32



ELAC12                        23/07/18 –06/08/18 
Woodside Avenue, Eastleigh – Northbound  LC41    40MPH 

33



BIFOHH26 
Church Road, Bishopstoke – LC19   
North Facing – Southbound Traffic 

06/08/18 – 20/08/18 
30mph 

34



CFH21                       20/08/18 – 03/09/18 
 Winchester Rd, Chandler’s Ford  - Southbound traffic - LC 35                                           30MPH 

35



HEWEB34                        03/09/18 - 17/09/18 
Kings Copse Avenue, Hedge End LC43 - Southbound    40MPH 

• - 

36



BIFOHH28 
Fair Oak Road, Bishopstoke – LC10 

17/09/18 – 01/10/18 
30mph 

37



HEWEB55                                         01/10/18 - 15/10/18 
Moorhill Road, West End,LC79 -Northbound     40MPH 

• - 

38



HEWEB57      15/10/18 – 29/10/18 
High Street, West End – LC76 - Westbound        30MPH 

39



CFH1        29/10/18-12/11/18 
Bodycoats Road, Chandlers Ford – LC 6 – Northeast bound traffic     30MPH 

40



BFOHH23 
Alan Drayton Way, Bishopstoke – LC12 
Eastbound 

12/11/18 – 26/11/18 
30mph 

41



ELAC7       26/11/18-10/12/18 
Chestnut Avenue, Eastleigh - Westbound LC24                         30MPH 

42



ELAC16                        10/12/18 - 24/12/18 
Eastbound – Allbrook Hill, LC8        30MPH 

43



CFH30                    24/12/18 – 07/01/19 
Templars Way, Chandlers Ford – LC 17 – Northwest bound traffic                      40MPH 

44



BIFOHH15 
Mortimers Lane , Fair Oak – LC18 

07/01/19 – 21/01/19 
30mph 

45



CFH9                      21/01/19 - 04/02/19 
Hiltingbury School, Hiltingbury  Rd, Chandlers Ford – LC61 – Westbound traffic 30MPH 

46



HEWEB9                      04/02/19 - 18/02/19 
Kings Copse Avenue LC17 or 16 - Southbound    
 40MPH 

47



CFH12 
Bournemouth Road, Chandlers Ford – LC49 North bound 
Traffic 

18/02/19 – 04/03/19 
40mph 

48



BIFOHH1 
Winchester Road, Fair Oak – LC36 North bound Traffic 

04/03/19 – 18/03/19 
30mph 

49



BHH8      18/03/19 - 01/04/19  
Hamble Lane, Hamble, Southbound Traffic – LC131,     
       30MPH 

50



ELAC14                        01/04/19 - 15/04/19 
Twyford Road, Eastleigh - Northbound -  LC49    30MPH   

51



HEWEB36                        15/04/19 - 29/04/19 
Bursledon Rd, Hedge End LC8C - Northbound     30MPH 

52



BIFOHH29 
Church Road, Bishopstoke – LC43 

29/04/19 – 13/05/19 
30mph 

53



CFH34                        13/05/19 - 27/05/19 
Merdon Avenue, Chandlers Ford  LC32 - Northbound    30MPH 

54



BHH9                   27/05/19-10/06/19 
Dodwell Lane, Bursledon - Northbound – LC6    30MPH 

55



HEWEB40                                               
                                                                                                                                           10/06/19-24/06/19 
Locke Road, Hedge End - North-Eastbound –  LC6                                                                          30MPH 

56



ELAC3                      24/06/19 - 08/07/19            
Derby Road, Eastleigh - Eastbound – LC9     30MPH 

57



T
his page is intentionally left blank



HCC SLR2 (2084)     (20/30/40 mph) 
Installation 
Date  

Removal date Location Ref Triggers 

09/07/2018 23/07/2018 Derby Road (LC27), Eastleigh ELAC6 9920 
23/07/2018 06/08/2018 Hursley Road (LC97), C/Ford – by Rothville Pl CFH36 11269 
06/08/2018 20/08/2018 Sutherlands Way (LC13), C/F – bySutherland Ct CFH13 1052 
20/08/2018 03/09/2018 Dodwell Lane (LC23), Bursledon BHH27 11892 
03/09/2018 17/09/2018 Alan Drayton Way, (LC27), Bishopstoke BIFOHH22 24435 
17/09/2018 01/10/2018 Oakmount Rd (LC35), C/F – opp Beresford Rd CFH26 40518 

01/10/2018 15/10/2018 Moorgreen Rd (LC18), W/End opp Barrowfields HEWEB54 9537 
15/10/2018 29/10/2018 Abbey Hill (LC17), Netley BHH24 5002 
29/10/2018 12/11/2018 Nightingale Avenue LC13), Eastleigh ELAC5 5296 
12/11/2018 26/11/2018 Botley Road, Horton Heath LC21 BIFOHH16 18731 
26/11/2018 10/12/2018 Upper Northam Drive (LC13),H/End by West Rd HEWEB52 2031 
10/12/2018 21/12/2018 Winchester St (LC24), Botley  Opp Park View HEWEB10 11388 
21/12/2018 07/01/2019 Shakespeare Road (LC23), Eastleigh ELAC5 19847 
07/01/2019 21/01/2019 Broadlands Avenue (LC24), Eastleigh ELAC1 968 
21/01/2019 04/02/2019 Church Road, Bishopstoke (LC19) BIFOHH27 3389 
04/02/2019 18/02/2019 Brownhill Road (LC12) CF – by Kingsway CFH6 3687 
18/02/2019 04/03/2019 Allington Lane (LC17), West End  by IVCP HEWEB39 2219 
04/03/2019 18/03/2019 Nightingale Avenue, (LC34), Eastleigh ELAC8 2483 
18/03/2019 01/04/2019 Botley Road, Horton Heath LC21 BIFOHH16 20608 
01/04/2019 15/04/2019 Swaythling Rd, (LC31), W/End Opp Master Builder HEWEB6 17841 
15/04/2019 29/04/2019 Mortimers Lane (LC18), Fair Oak BIFOHH15 
29/04/2019 13/05/2019 Hound Way, LC26), Netley BHH25 
13/05/2019 27/05/2019 Wildern Lane (LC9) Hedge End  Opp Dean Crt HEWEB32 
27/05/2019 10/06/2019 Bridge Road, Bursledon (LC60) BHH12 
10/06/2019 24/06/2019 Winchester Road, Fair Oak(LC35) BIFOHH6 
24/06/2019 08/07/2019 Maddoxford Lane, Boorley Green (New LC) HEWEB61 LC by new developmentment 
08/07/2019 22/07/2019 Winchester Rd, Boorley Green (extended post) HEWEB62 check speed  limit change 40>30 

59



ELAC6                     09/07/18 - 23/07/18 
Derby Road, Eastleigh - Westbound - LC27                        30MPH 

60



CFH36          23/07/18 - 06/08/18   
Hursley Rd, Chandlers Ford – LC97 - Southbound traffic                              30MPH 

61



CFH13                                        06/08/18 – 20/08/18 
Sutherlands Way, Chandlers Ford , Southbound Traffic – LC 13    30MPH 

62



BHH27                                                                                                 20/08/2018-03/09/2018 
Dodwell Lane, Bursledon – LC23 – Northbound Traffic                                           30MPH 

63



BFOHH22                  03/09/18 - 17/09/18 
Alan Drayton Way, Bishopstoke  -  Westbound LC27                                       30MPH 

64



CFH26                                         17/09/18 - 01/10/18 
Oakmount Road, Chandlers Ford –LC25 – Northbound traffic                      30MPH 

65



HEWEB54                                         01/10/18 - 15/10/18 
Moorgreen Road, West End –LC18 – Westbound traffic                                          30MPH 

66



BHH24                      15/10/18 - 29/10/18 
Abbey Hill, Netley, Southbound – LC17      30MPH 

67



ELAC5                  29/10/18 - 12/11/18 
Nightingale Avenue, Eastleigh -  Westbound LC13                                                     
30MPH 

 

68



BIFOHH16                                     12/11/18 - 26/11/18 
Botley Road, Horton Heath  -  Northbound LC21                                       30MPH 

69



HEWEB56                  26/11/18 - 10/12/18 
Upper Northam Drive, Hedge End  -  Westbound LC13                                       30MPH 

70



HEWEB10                 10/12/18 - 24/12/18 
Winchester Street, Botley - South-eastbound  LC24                   30MPH 

71



ELAC15                                           24/12/18 - 07/01/19 
Shakespeare Road, Eastleigh – Eastbound-  LC23    20MPH 

72



ELAC1               07/01/19 - 21/01/19 
Broadlands Avenue, Eastleigh - Southbound LC24    30MPH 

73



BIFOHH27                  21/01/19 - 04/02/19 
Church Road, Bishopstoke – LC19    
South Facing – Northbound Traffic      30MPH 

74



CFH6                      04/02/19 -18/02/19 
Brownhill Road, Chandlers Ford – LC12 – Northwest bound traffic   30MPH 

75



HEWEB39                       18/02/19- 04/03/19 
Allington Lane (by entrance to IVCP) Eastbound – LC17    40MPH 

76



ELAC8                      04/03/19 - 18/03/19 
Nightingale Avenue, Eastleigh - Eastbound -  LC34    30MPH 

77



BIFOHH16                  18/03/19 - 01/04/19 
Botley Road, Horton Heath - Northbound LC21                                       30MPH 

78



HEWEB6                      01/04/19 - 15/04/19 
Swaythling Road, West End - North-westbound –  LC31    30MPH 

79



BIFOHH15 
Mortimers Lane, Horton Heath – LC18  
West bound Traffic 

   15/04/19 – 29/04/19 
30mph 

80



BHH25                      29/04/19 - 13/05/19 
Hound Way, Netley  - Westbound - LC26     40MPH 

81



HEWEB32                        13/05/19 - 27/05/19 
Wildern Lane, Hedge End - Northbound –  LC9                                         20MPH 

82



BHH12                              27/05/19 - 10/06/19 
Bridge Road, Bursledon - Eastbound – LC60      30MPH 

83



BIFOHH6                  10/06/19 - 24/06/19 
Winchester Road, Fair Oak  -  Southbound LC35                                       30MPH 

84



HEWEB61                  24/06/19 - 08/07/19 
Maddoxford Lane, Boorley Green  -  ??bound LC??                                       30MPH 

 

85



HEWEB62                  08/07/19 - 22/07/19 
Winchester Road, Boorley Green  - Northbound - post                                       30MPH 

86



Appendix 6

Winchester Road (LC21) by Hillside Close          x 2 deployments 

Hiltingbury Road (LC43), nr Oakwood Close       x 2 deployments – 1 eastbound & 1 westbound

Oakmount Rd (LC34) nr Ridgeway Close

Hursley Road (LC14) Opp Sutherlands Way

Winchester Road (LC74), by Thornden  (north-east bound traffic)              x 3 deployments

Park Road (LC12) nr Kings Rd

Winchester Road (LC73), by Thornden (south-west bound traffic)

Bodycoats Road (LC28), nr Cherwell Gdns                                                     x 2 deployments

Hursley Road (LC97) nr Rothville Place                                                          x 2 deployments

Baddesley Road (LC24) junc with North Millers Dale

Hursley Road (LC37), C/Ford – by junction with Valley Rd

Winchester Road (LC35), C/Ford – north of Fryern Arcade

Bodycoats Road (LC6), C/Ford – by Hardwick Road

Templars Way (LC17) C/Ford – South of Montgomery Way

Hiltingbury Road (LC61) Hiltingbury – outside H’bury School

Bournemouth Road (LC49) C/Ford – south of Westfield Rd

Merdon Ave (LC32) C/Ford – south of junc with Oakwood Rd

Sutherlands Way (LC13), C/F – by Sutherlands Court

Oakmount Rd (LC35), C/F – opp Beresford Rd

Brownhill Road (LC12) CF – by Kingsway

87



This page is intentionally left blank



CFH – Chandlers Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee Wednesday 19 June 
2019.

Application Number: F/18/84154
Case Officer: Gary Osmond
Received Date: Wednesday 3 October 2018

Site Address: 9 VALLEY ROAD, CHANDLER'S FORD, EASTLEIGH, SO53 
1GQ

Applicant: Sam Doswell

Proposal: Construction of 4No, two bedroom, 5No. three bedroom and 
3No. four bedroom dwellings with associated amenity space 
and parking, following demolition of existing care home.

Recommendation: PERMIT
Subject to: i) revisions to the site layout which will accommodate 

a bin collection area in an acceptable manner; and
ii) the securing of planning obligations towards:- 

Community Infrastructure; Public Open Space & 
Play Provision, including towards the provision of 
Local Green Space; and Public Art.

CONDITIONS AND REASONS

1 The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with 
the following plans numbered:170718, 197 P-00, 3117-VALL-ICS-XX-RP-C-
07.001, 7515, 7515 L01, 7515_D01 Rev.N, 7515_D02 Rev.B, 7515_D03 Rev.F, 
7515_D04, 7515_D05, 7515_D06 Rev.A, 7515_D07 Rev.A, 7515_D08 Rev.A, 
7515_D09 Rev.A, 7515_D10, 7515_D11, 7515_D12, 7515_D13, 7515_D14 
Rev.B, 7515_D15 Rev.B, 7515_D16, 7515_D17, 7515_E01, 7515_E02, 
7515_E03, C031801-01, C12273, DP147, ENC/1903/18/7BB5, GWPR2641, 
GWPR2641 P, TT.DOS.VAL.501 Rev.B, VALL-ICS-01-XX-DR-C-001-P4, 
VALL-ICS-01-XX-DR-C-002-P3, VALL-ICS-01-XX-DR-C-050-P1, VALL-ICS-01-
XX-DR-C-051-P1-S2 & VR250918-01 Rev.A.
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

2 The development hereby permitted shall start no later than three years from the 
date of this decision.
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990. 

3 No construction or demolition work shall start until a Method Statement has 
been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. 
Demolition and construction work shall only take place in accordance with the 
approved method statement which shall include:
a) a programme and phasing of the demolition and construction work, including 
roads, landscaping and communal space;
b) location of temporary site buildings, compounds, construction material and 

89

Agenda Item 8



plant storage areas used during demolition and construction;
c) the arrangements for the routing / turning of lorries and details for 
construction traffic access to the site;
d) the arrangements for deliveries associated with all construction works, 
loading / unloading of plant & materials and restoration of any damage to the 
highway, including vehicle crossovers and grass verges;
e) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;
f) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt generated by demolition and 
construction;
g) a scheme for controlling noise and vibration from demolition and construction 
activities (to include piling);
h) provision for storage, collection, and disposal of rubbish from the 
development during construction period;
i) measures to prevent mud and dust on the highway during demolition and 
construction;
j) the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative 
displays and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate;
k) temporary lighting; and
l) protection of pedestrian routes during construction.
Reason: To limit the impact the development has on the amenity of the locality 
and neighbouring occupiers.

4 Development shall not commence until a Construction Environmental 
Management Plan (CEMP) detailing construction SuDS and other mechanisms 
to ensure that there is no pollution of the surface water drainage system during 
the course of demolition and construction has been submitted to and agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The agreed CEMP shall then be 
followed in full throughout the course of demolition and construction works. 
Reason: To ensure water quality is preserved and protected species 
populations are not impacted.

5 No construction, demolition or deliveries to the site shall take place during the 
construction period except between the hours of 0800 to 1800 Mondays to 
Fridays or 0900 to 1300 on Saturdays and not at all on Sundays or Bank 
Holidays.
Reason: To protect the amenities of the occupiers of nearby dwellings.

6 No burning of materials obtained by site clearance or any other source shall 
take place during the demolition, construction and fitting out process.
Reason: To protect the amenities of the occupiers of nearby properties.

7 No driven pilling shall take place on the development hereby permitted.
Reason: To protect the amenity of the occupiers of the nearby dwellings.

8 Prior to reaching DPC level of the first dwelling unit, details of the materials to 
be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development hereby 
permitted, including window frames, fascias and soffits, rainwater goods, porch 
canopies and front doors, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details.

90



Reason: To ensure a satisfactory visual appearance in the interest of the 
amenities of the area.

9 The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the 
submitted flood risk assessment (ref: document reference 3117-VALL-ICS-XX-
RP-C-07.001, Revision E, dated 12 April 2019, and compiled by Infrastruct CS 
Ltd.) and the following mitigation measures it details:
a) Finished floor levels shall be set as detailed below and in Table 7.8.D and 
Appendix H:
- Plot 1 finished floor levels shall be set no lower than 31.95m above Ordnance 
Datum (AOD) as detailed in Table 7.8.D and Appendix H; 
- Plot 2 finished floor levels shall be set no lower than 32.56m above Ordnance 
Datum (AOD) as detailed in Table 7.8.D and Appendix H;
- Plots 3, 4, 5 and 6 finished floor levels shall be set no lower than 31.80m 
above Ordnance Datum (AOD) as detailed in Table 7.8.D and Appendix H;
- Plot 7 finished floor levels shall be set no lower than 31.85m above Ordnance 
Datum (AOD) as detailed in Table 7.8.D and Appendix H;
- Plots 8 and 9 finished floor levels shall be set no lower than 31.90m above 
Ordnance Datum (AOD) as detailed in Table 7.8.D and Appendix H; and
- Plots 10 and 11 finished floor levels shall be set no lower than 32.15m above 
Ordnance Datum (AOD) as detailed in Table 7.8.D and Appendix H.
b) Compensatory storage shall be provided to the North West corner of the 
proposed site, using the 1% AEP 105% CC allowance, the proposed volume of 
storage should be 18.00m3 for contour band 30.97m to 31.17m, 36.10m3 for 
contour band 31.17m to 31.37m and 4.70m3 for contour band 31.37m to 
31.67m as detailed in Table 7.8.E, Appendix H. 
These mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation and 
subsequently in accordance with the scheme’s timing/phasing arrangements. 
The measures detailed above shall be retained and maintained thereafter 
throughout the lifetime of the development.
Reason: In line with section 9 of the Planning Practice Guidance of the National 
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) for Flood Risk and Coastal Change to 
reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future occupants 
and prevent flooding elsewhere by ensuring that compensatory storage of flood 
water is provided.

10 No development shall start until details for the disposal of foul sewerage from 
the development hereby permitted have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with Southern Water. The 
development shall then accord with the approved details.
Reason: To ensure satisfactory provision of foul and surface water drainage.

Note to Applicant: A formal application for connection to the public sewerage 
system is required in order to service this development, please contact 
Southern Water, Sparrowgrove House, Sparrowgrove, Otterbourne, Hampshire 
SO21 2SW (Tel: 0330 303 0119) or www.southernwater.co.uk. Please read our 
New Connections Services Charging Arrangements documents which has now 
been published and is available to read on our website via the following link 
https://beta.southernwater.co.uk/infrastructurecharges.

91



11 No development shall start until details of a sustainable drainage system have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in 
consultation with Southern Water. The details shall include a timetable for its 
implementation and a management/ maintenance plan for the lifetime of the 
development, including the arrangements for adoption by any public body or 
statutory undertaker, or any other arrangements to secure the effective 
operation of the sustainable drainage system throughout its lifetime.
Reason: To ensure satisfactory drainage for the development.

12 The agreed Sustainable Drainage Scheme with any necessary landscaping 
shall be fully implemented and written verification by an appropriate drainage 
consultant of its implementation in accordance with the approved plans and 
supporting drainage statements shall be provided to the Local Planning 
Authority prior to the first occupation of any dwelling unit. The sustainable 
drainage scheme shall thereafter be retained, maintained and managed in 
accordance with the approved management and maintenance statement. 
Reason: To ensure adequate drainage and to prevent flooding and pollution.
 

13 Prior to reaching DPC level of the first dwelling unit, details for the on site 
provision of bin & cycle storage facilities shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. No dwelling unit shall be occupied until 
its allocated bin & cycle storage has been provided/ constructed in accordance 
with the approved details and thereafter retained and kept available.
Reason: To ensure the adequate provision of on site facilities.

14 Prior to reaching DPC level of the first dwelling unit, details of biodiversity 
mitigation and enhancement measures to include: integral bird, bat and bee 
features installed in every dwelling; details of external lighting to minimise light 
spill into landscaped areas; and ecological landscape enhancement, shall be 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The agreed 
measures shall then be implemented in full prior to the occupation of the 
building, unless agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason: To ensure suitable mitigation and enhancement for lost habitat.

15 The development hereby approved must accord with the arboricultural report 
reference MB190205-01 dated February 2019. No excavation, demolition or 
development related works shall commence until the tree protection fencing and 
ground protection has been installed as per the tree protection plan contained 
within the report. Once installed, no access by vehicles or placement of goods, 
chemicals, fuels, soil or other materials shall take place within the protected 
area. Tree protection measures shall be retained in their approved form for the 
duration of the work. This condition may only be fully discharged upon 
completion of the proposed development
Reason: To retain and protect the existing trees which form an important part of 
the amenity of the locality.

16 Prior to reaching DPC level of the first dwelling, a landscaping scheme shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
scheme shall cover all hard & soft landscaping, including trees, boundary 
treatment and biodiversity enhancement, and shall provide details of timings for 

92



all landscaping and any future maintenance. The works shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved plans and to the appropriate British Standard 
within twelve months of completion of the last building shell.
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenity of the locality, biodiversity and to 
safeguard the amenities of neighbouring residents.

17 All hard & soft landscaping, tree planting and boundary treatment shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved details and to the appropriate 
British Standard. For a period of 5 years after planting, any trees or plants 
which are removed, die or become seriously damaged or defective, shall be 
replaced as soon as is reasonably practicable with others of the same species, 
size and number as originally approved in the landscaping scheme.
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenity of the locality and to safeguard 
the amenities of neighbouring residents.

18 Prior to reaching DPC level of the first dwelling, details of the main site access 
alterations/ improvements, including any footway and verge crossing, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in 
consultation with the Highway Authority. The development shall not be 
occupied/ brought into use until the approved details have been fully 
implemented unless agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure satisfactory vehicular access.

19 Any first floor windows on the side elevations of all plots shall be obscure 
glazed to Pilkingtons level 3 or equivalent with no opening parts less than 1.7 
metres above the floor level of the rooms they serve, or be positioned with their 
lower sill at least 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which they are 
installed. Once installed the windows shall be permanently maintained in that 
condition.
Reason: To protect the amenity and privacy of the adjoining residential 
properties.

20 Notwithstanding the provisions of The Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, or any order revoking and re-
enacting that Order with or without modification, no development permitted by 
Classes A, B, C or D of Part 1 of Schedule 2 of the order shall be carried out 
without the prior written consent of The Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To protect the amenities of the locality and neighbouring properties, 
and to maintain a good quality living environment.

21 Notwithstanding the provisions of The Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, or any order revoking and re-
enacting that Order with or without modification, no development permitted by 
Class F of Part 1 of Schedule 2 of the order shall be carried out to the frontage 
of any dwelling hereby approved without the prior written consent of The Local 
Planning Authority.
Reason: To protect the amenities of the locality and neighbouring properties, 
and to maintain a good quality living environment.

22 Prior to the occupation of any building within each individual phase of the 

93



development [or, in accordance with a timetable to be agreed in writing with the 
Local Planning Authority], as built stage SAP data and as built stage water 
calculator confirming energy efficiency and the predicted internal mains water 
consumption to achieve the following shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority: In respect of energy efficiency, a 
standard of a 19% improvement of dwelling emission rate over the target 
emission rate as set in the 2013 Building Regulations In respect of water 
consumption, a maximum predicted internal mains water consumption of 105 
litres/person/day. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To support a comprehensive approach to high quality design across 
the site; in line with the guidance set out in the Government's Ministerial 
Statement of 25 March 2015 which states that Local Planning Authorities 
should, from the date of its publication, take into account the government's 
intentions in the statement and not set conditions with requirements above a 
Code level 4 equivalent.

23 No dwelling unit shall be brought into use until its allocated parking spaces have 
been constructed, surfaced and marked out in accordance with the approved 
plan and safe access to Valley Road provided. The approved parking area shall 
not thereafter be used for any purpose other than the turning, parking, loading 
and unloading of vehicles.
Reason: To make provision for off street parking for the purpose of highway 
safety.

24 The development hereby permitted shall not be brought into use until a turning 
space has been provided within the site to enable vehicles to enter and leave in 
forward gear. The turning space shall subsequently be retained and kept 
available for such purposes at all times.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

25 The development hereby permitted shall not be brought into use until visibility 
splays of 2.4 metres by 43 metres have been provided at the junction of the 
access and the public highway. Nothing over 0.6m in height above the level of 
the carriageway shall be placed or permitted to remain within the visibility splay.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

26 Written verification by an appropriate consultant confirming that the construction 
of all unadopted roads and footpaths within the development is in accordance 
with the approved plans and details shall be provided to the Local Planning 
Authority prior to the first occupation of the 10th dwelling unit. 
Reason: To ensure that the development is provided to an appropriate 
standard. 

Note to Applicant: In accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework (February 2019), Eastleigh Borough Council takes a positive 
approach to the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever 
possible, a positive outcome and to ensure all proposals are dealt with in a 
timely manner.

94



Note to Applicant: the permission does not authorise the undertaking of any 
works involving excavations in the carriageway, footway or verge. A road 
opening permit must be obtained from Hampshire Highways, HCC call centre 
number 0845 6035633.

Note to Applicant: It is requested that the building works are carried out 
considerately to minimise disruption to the occupiers of the neighbouring 
properties. The council operates a code of best practice, which is available on 
the council's website www.eastleigh.gov.uk by following the links to Planning, 
Guidance on the process, scroll down to Guidance on Aspects of the Planning 
& Construction Process and select considerate builders advice note.

Note to Applicant: In accordance with Appendix C of the Council's adopted 
Policy Quality Places SPD, the Council requires developers to meet the cost of 
bins for general and recycling waste. These must be purchased from the 
Council's Direct Services unit.

Report:

This application has been referred to Committee because it is a major 
application.

Description of Application

1. The application seeks consent for the construction of 4No, two bedroom, 5No. 
three bedroom and 3No. four bedroom dwellings with associated amenity 
space and parking, following demolition of existing care home. These would 
be made up of a mixture of detached and semi-detached properties with 
access from Valley Road.

Site Area & Residential Development Density (Net)

2. The application site measures 4410 square metres, which results in a density 
of just over 27 dwellings per hectare for the twelve unit scheme proposed.

Topography, Trees & Boundary Treatment

3. The site is generally flat and level, with a very modest fall of around a metre 
from the front south-eastern to rear north-western corners. There are a 
number of groups of trees across the site, as well as other individual 
specimens just outside the site boundaries on neighbouring land. The majority 
of these trees are subject to Tree Preservation Orders (TPOs). The most 
noticeable group are those to the very front of the site along the Valley Road 
frontage which is predominantly made up of Scots Pine, as well as a dense 
line of Lawson Cypress. Other trees across the site include Scots Pine, Silver 
Birch, Poplar and Weeping Willow. In terms of boundary treatments, while the 
site frontage is defined by the line of Cypress, the majority of the remaining 
boundaries are marked by 1.8 – 2.0 metre close boarded fencing.

95



Site Characteristics & Character of Locality

4. The application site is large, even in comparison to the average Valley Road 
plot size. The site was last used as a nursing home, closing in 2014. The 
majority of the site has been developed, consisting of a sizable car park 
immediately behind the frontage trees, accessed via two vehicular entrances 
onto Valley Road. Behind the car park are the original Moorwood Cottage, a 
sizable 1920s/30s chalet bungalow, and a fairly typical 1960s two storey 
dwelling. These original dwellings have been enlarged and linked together 
through a series of extensions, including a very deep, predominantly single 
storey addition to the rear which extends some 50+ metres into the site. 
Between this large addition and the site boundaries are landscaped amenity 
areas, including a pond towards the north-western corner of the site.

5. The surrounding area is predominantly residential in nature, although there 
are two remaining nursing homes in Valley Road: ‘The Beeches’ and ‘Valley 
Lodge’, as well as a children’s nursery, ‘Little 1 Nursery’. Most properties 
along this stretch of Valley Road are good size two storey detached dwellings 
on sizable plots, although there are some examples of semi-detached 
dwellings, most dating from around 1910 to 1930s. Further to the west the 
character of the street is a little more mixed consisting of 1920s semis and 
detached bungalows, through to more recent additions to the street. In 
general, the street has a fairly spacious and green character.

6. Other development surrounding the application site consists of 1960s/70s 
semi-detached dwellings and more recent back-land development which is 
from the early 2000s.

Relevant Planning History

7. There are various planning applications and pre-application enquiries relating 
to the site’s former use as a nursing/care home but this is the first such 
proposal to develop the site for residential purposes.

Representations Received

8. A total of 21 representations have been received from 17 addresses: 4 
objecting; 11 in support; and 6 commenting.

9. Those objecting to the application have raised the following points:

 Overlooking and loss of privacy.
 Loss of light.
 Flooding and drainage concerns.
 Revised street scene not in keeping with Valley Road.
 Loss of trees.
 Disturbance during demolition and construction.
 Devaluation of neighbouring properties.

96



10.Those in support have made the following comments:

 Redevelopment of the site would improve the appearance of the street and 
get rid of a derelict building.

 Would contribute to “much needed” new housing in the locality.
 Good range of housing proposed.
 Would make a good use of a brownfield site.

11.Whilst those neither supporting nor objecting to the application have 
highlighted the following issues:

 Care should be taken to retain protected trees.
 The amenity of neighbouring properties should be protected.
 Appropriate boundary treatment to be provided.
 Protection of neighbours during demolition and construction.
 Neighbouring properties and those downhill of the site should be protected 

from flooding and existing drainage issues.
 Replacement trees should be provided.
 Contractors should not park on Valley Road or verges.

Consultation Responses

12.Tree Officer – No objection provided the revised and updated arboricultural 
documents are followed in full. A condition to this effect is recommended.

13.Environmental Health – No objection subject to amenity protection 
conditions during demolition and construction.

14.Ecology Officer – Holding objection on the grounds of loss “unacknowledged 
and unacceptable loss of biodiversity”. Most vegetation on site had been 
cleared prior to ecology surveys being carried out. A number of potentially 
worthy trees are to be removed with little room for suitable replacements. The 
proposed landscaping is insufficient to compensate for habitat already lost 
and does not appear to follow the recommendations of the ecology report.

15.The ecology survey shows site trees as having negligible bat roost potential. 
However, a garage has been identified as a single pipistrelle roost and the 
site as having high levels of bat foraging and commuting activity. A better 
landscape scheme and more tree retention would ensure no net loss of 
suitable habitat.

16.Again, better landscape proposals and more tree retention would ensure no 
net loss of suitable habitat for birds.

17.Regarding drainage, it is unclear if the proposed system will provide sufficient 
filtration of surface water before being discharged off site. “It is regrettable that 
a naturalised form of SuDS has not been provided on the site as this would 
have encompassed the full principles of SuDS.”

97



18.Proposed compensatory flood storage is to be provided by lowering ground 
levels. However, this is within the root protection area of retained trees which 
would damage tree roots. The creation of a permanent wetland area would be 
of benefit, assisting with local flood issues as well as providing habitat.

19.Conditions recommended requiring bird, bat and bee features to be installed 
in all dwellings, the need for suitable external lighting to protect bats, and the 
need for a Construction Environmental Management Plan to be agreed prior 
to commencement.

20.Direct Services – Has requested that a bin collection point should be 
provided at the site entrance with room for a 240ltr wheeled bin and 25ltr food 
waste caddy per household.

21.Housing Enabling Officer – “This application triggers a 20% affordable 
housing requirement and on the basis of the proposal for a total of 11 
dwellings, 20% equates to 2 dwellings. However, the information submitted 
advises that Vacant Building Credit is applicable to the proposed development 
which negates any affordable housing contribution. On this basis I have no 
further comments to make.”

22.Hampshire Highways – No objection. The existing site access positions are 
acceptable with adequate visibility and no known accident record. Parking 
appears adequate but this is for Eastleigh Borough Council to consider. 
However, it is suggested that some parking spaces be widened when 
immediately adjacent to a wall. The internal layout of the site appears 
acceptable but confirmation that it can accommodate the correct size refuse 
vehicle would be required via an updated tracking drawing, as that shown 
appears under standard.

23. It is the opinion of the Highway Authority that trip generation associated with 
the proposed residential use would be less than or no greater than the former 
care home use. As such no transport contributions are sought.

24.Chandler’s Ford Parish Council – Concerns expressed regarding the 
proximity of Plot 7 to Flood Zones 2/3, as well as the potential impact of the 
development to add to existing foul sewer flooding issues elsewhere in Valley 
Road.

25.Environment Agency – No objection to the revised Flood Risk Assessment 
and Drainage Strategy, Issue E, submitted in support of the application 
provided a condition is included requiring the approved development to follow 
the recommendations of the assessment.

26.HCC Flood & Water Management – No objection. The revised Flood Risk 
Assessment and Drainage Strategy, Issue E, has addressed all previous 
points. “Therefore we consider that the proposals for surface water drainage 
meet the current standards/best practice in relation to surface water 
drainage.”

98



27.Southern Water – No objection. Consent will be required from Southern 
Water to connect the development to the public foul sewer and final details of 
drainage should be agreed in consultation with Southern Water prior to 
commencement.

28.Natural England – No objection subject to the approval of a Biodiversity 
Mitigation and Enhancement Plan.

29.HCC Children’s Services – No comments received.

30.University Hospital Southampton – Requests a financial contribution 
towards providing health care services to meet increased demand.

Policy Context:  Designation Applicable to Site

 Within Built-up Area Boundary
 Within Established Residential Area

Development Plan Saved Policies and Emerging Local Plan Policies

31.Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011) saved Policies: 25.NC, 
28.ES, 34.ES, 43.ES, 45.ES, 59.BE, 74.H, 100.T, 102.T, 146.OS, 185.IN & 
191.IN

32.Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029, July 2014
The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 was submitted for examination 
in July 2014 but the Inspector concluded that insufficient housing was being 
provided for in the Plan and that it was unsound.  While this has not been 
withdrawn and remains a material consideration, it can therefore be 
considered to have extremely limited weight in the determination of this 
application.

33.Emerging Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036
The Council undertook public consultation on an updated Local Plan (2016 – 
2036) during the summer of 2018 with the plan being formally submitted to the 
Secretary of State in October 2018. Given the status of the Emerging Plan, it 
is considered that limited weight can be attributed to it.

34.Supplementary Planning Documents

 Supplementary Planning Document: Quality Places (November 2011)
 Supplementary Planning Document: Biodiversity (December 2009)
 Supplementary Planning Document: Residential Parking Standards 

(January 2009)
 Supplementary Planning Document: Environmentally Sustainable 

Development (March 2009)
 Supplementary Planning Document: Planning Obligations (July 2008, 

updated 2010)
 Supplementary Planning Document: Affordable Housing (July 2009)

99



National Planning Policy Framework

35.At a national level, the National Planning Policy Framework (the ‘NPPF’ or the 
‘Framework’) is a material consideration of significant weight in the 
determination of planning applications. The NPPF states that (as required by 
statute) applications for planning permission must be determined in 
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise and sets out a general presumption in favour of sustainable 
development.

36.The three identified dimensions of sustainability should to be sought jointly: 
economic (supporting economy and ensuring land availability); social 
(providing housing, creating high quality environment with accessible local 
services); and environmental (contributing to, protecting and enhancing 
natural, built and historic environment) whilst local circumstances should also 
be taken into account, so that development appropriately responds to the 
different opportunities for achieving sustainable development in different 
areas.

National Planning Practice Guidance 

37.Where material the Planning Practice Guidance which supports the provisions 
and policies of the NPPF should be afforded weight in the consideration and 
determination of planning applications.

Policy Commentary

38.The above policies and guidance combine to form the criteria against which 
this application will be assessed with particular regard to: planning policy and 
the principle of that proposed; the loss of the former care home; the layout 
and design of that proposed and its impact upon the street scene and 
character of the surrounding area; trees; parking and highway matters; 
residential amenity; drainage and flooding; environmental sustainability: and 
nature conservation.

Comment on Consultation Responses and Representations Received

39.A response to the majority of planning related matters is given below. With 
regards to concerns relating to the devaluation of neighbouring properties, 
while these concerns are noted, the impact of any development upon the 
value of property is not a material planning consideration and cannot be used 
as a reason to approve or refuse an application.

40. In response to the request from University Hospital Southampton NHS 
Foundation Trust for financial contributions, this has been reviewed by 
Development Management and Legal Specialists who are of the opinion that 
the request and the justification given does not comply with the requirements 
of the CIL regulations. As such, no such contributions are sought from this 
development.

100



Assessment of Proposal: Development Plan and / or Legislative 
Background

41.Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states:-

"If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any 
determination to be made under the planning Acts the determination must 
be made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise."

In this case policy issues for consideration include:

Planning Policy & Principle

42.The application site lies within the urban edge where the basic principle of 
development is considered to be acceptable. It also lies within an established 
residential area, meaning that further proposals for residential development 
would be generally appropriate for the nature of the surrounding area. 
However, any formal planning approval will be based upon the exact nature, 
design and impact of that proposed being considered appropriate and in 
accordance with the relevant Local Plan policies and Supplementary Planning 
Documents. The most relevant policy in this case is saved Policy 59.BE of the 
adopted Local Plan which requires development to take full and proper 
account of the context of the site including the character and appearance of 
the locality and be appropriate in mass, scale, materials, layout, design and 
siting. It also requires a high standard of landscape design, a satisfactory 
means of access and layout for vehicles, cyclists and pedestrians, to make 
provision for refuse and cycle storage and avoid unduly impacting on 
neighbouring uses through overlooking, loss of light, loss of outlook, and 
noise and fumes.

Loss of Care Home

43.Whilst the former care home was run by a private company, it could 
nonetheless be considered as a community facility given that it did provide a 
service to the local community. As such, saved Policy 185.IN of the adopted 
Local Plan would apply. This policy relates to the loss of established 
community facilities and states that the Council will not allow development 
which would result in the loss or removal of an established community facility 
unless suitable alternative provision is made which is of an acceptable quality 
and appropriately located to serve the needs of the community, or that it can 
be demonstrated that the facility is surplus to local needs.

44.As has been set out above, the home has been closed since 2014, with little 
or no viable interest shown in reopening it as a care facility. This is likely for a 
number of reasons, principal of which is the amount of work required to bring 
it up to current standards and being too small to be financially viable in the 
current climate. Given the current position and the length of time the home 
has been closed, during which it is presumed other care homes have taken up 
any shortfall in provision, it is considered that the former care home can be 

101



viewed as being surplus to local needs. As such, its loss would not be 
deemed contrary to saved Policy 185.IN of the adopted Local Plan.

Layout, Design, Street Scene & Area Character

45.As set out above, the application seeks consent for the construction of 4No, 
two bedroom, 5No. three bedroom and 3No. four bedroom dwellings with 
associated amenity space and parking, following demolition of the existing 
care home. The site is rectangular in shape, being approximately 35 metres 
wide and 120 metres deep and having a north – south orientation. Both 
existing vehicular access points would be reused, that to the west serving a 
single detached four bedroom dwelling, and that to the east being the main 
access point which would serve the remainder of the development, with the 
internal road running along the eastern boundary of the site.

46.Fronting onto Valley Road is the detached four bedroom dwelling previously 
mentioned (Plot 1), together with a pair of three bedroom semi-detached 
houses which utilise a shared parking area (Plots 2a & 2b). Behind these, 
orientated parallel to Valley Road but fronting the internal site road, are two 
pairs of two bedroom semi-detached dwellings (Plots 3 to 6). Whilst not quite 
chalet bungalow in form, they do have lower ridgelines and eaves which give 
them a reduced scale compared to a full two storey dwelling. These plots 
would have more formal ‘on-street’ parking rather than individual driveways. 
Behind these, facing north, are three more three bedroom dwellings – a 
detached (Plot 7) and a pair of semi-detached (Plots 8 & 9) – again with on-
street parking rather than driveways. And finally to the north of these would be 
two detached four bedroom houses (Plots 10 & 11). Parking for Plot 10 would 
be on-street and set to its rear, with parking for Plot 11 again on-street and to 
its front at the end of a turning head. All plots would have a private rear 
garden at least 10.0 metres deep.

47. In terms of architectural style, it is proposed to use a very traditional form and 
materials. All dwellings would have pitched roofs covered in clay or slate tiles, 
red brick is used throughout, with brick detailing, bay windows, lead porch 
canopies and decorative bargeboards to provide interest, including faux tax 
windows. Whilst Valley Road is relatively mixed overall, that proposed does 
take some inspiration from the older original Edwardian villas which front the 
street.

48.An objection has been raised with regards to the impact of the development 
upon the Valley Road street scene, highlighting that semi-detached dwellings 
are not prevalent. It is accepted that the majority of properties along this 
stretch of the road are predominantly detached but there are examples of 
semi-detached properties nearby, namely Nos.2 & 4 which are a hansom pair 
of original Edwardian dwellings. This inclusion of a pair of semi-detached 
properties to the frontage does in fact assist in providing an appropriate 
increase in scale between the two existing properties which immediately 
neighbour the site, No.11 being a slightly more modest 1950s/60s dwelling 
and No.7 being a far larger original Edwardian detached villa. This transition 
across the site is considered to be appropriate and the much closer 

102



positioning to the Valley Road frontage in fact reinforces the existing building 
line, something the present building does not. There is also an intension to 
retain the main protected trees and enhance the planting to the frontage, 
which will assist in softening the physical impact of the development.

49.Whilst the proposed development immediately fronting onto Valley Road is 
considered to be generally acceptable, there are some reservations relating to 
the layout, or more specifically the quantity and form of development 
proposed for the remainder of the site and how well this sits with the 
prevailing pattern of development in the area. This part of Chandler’s Ford is 
generally characterized by detached and semi-detached dwellings on good 
size plots, Valley Road in particular being one street where the plot sizes are 
rather generous. Even the ‘denser’ development of streets such as 
Heathlands Close, Cypress Grove and Acorn Drive, which are all in relatively 
close proximity to the site, have reasonable size plots and gardens by modern 
standards. In contrast, the number of units proposed for the application site 
has resulted in plot and garden sizes which are noticeably smaller than the 
vast majority of surrounding plots, even the smallest of those in Heathlands 
Close. Notwithstanding this, all proposed plots with the exception of Plot 8 
meet the Council’s ‘Quality Places’ Supplementary Planning Document 
guidance on garden size, which states that dwellings should be provided with 
useable gardens which are a minimum of 60% of the floor area of the dwelling 
which it serves (Plot 8 equates to 54%). This guidance also states that when a 
garden faces within 30 degrees of due north, it should have a minimum depth 
of 12.0 metres. Whilst this standard is met for Plot 1, the garden depths for 
Plots 2a & 2b at 10.0 metres fall short due to the dwellings having to be set 
slightly further back in order to avoid impact on the frontage trees. Whilst 
failing to meet these minimum standards for a small number of plots, in 
general that proposed is considered to acceptably balance the necessary 
requirements with site constraints. As such, it would be unreasonable to justify 
a refusal of the application on the grounds of plot/garden size.

50.Another result of the number of units proposed and the need to meet the 
Council’s parking standards is how the site frontage of almost all the proposed 
plots are dealt with. Each of the two and three bedroom dwellings are required 
to have a minimum of two off-road parking spaces, with three spaces being 
required for the four bedroom dwellings. The tight arrangement of the plots 
and the need to provide adequate room to manoeuvre in and out of a parking 
space has resulted in all but Plots 1, 2a & 2b having to utilise formal street 
parking rather than the more informal driveway parking used elsewhere in the 
surrounding area. Whilst this would not necessarily cause an issue for the 
street scene, being that this would only be noticeable whilst within the site, it 
is an arrangement which is quite out of context with the character of the 
surrounding area in that it something far more likely to be found in a much 
denser urban context rather than the much looser green suburban context of 
Valley Road. However, again this is not considered to be sufficient grounds to 
refuse the application.

51.One of the other characteristics of this part of Valley Road is the lack of built 
form of any noticeable scale within the rear gardens of properties. If viewed as 

103



a simple figure and ground diagram this would be clearly evident by the 
positioning of most development towards the street frontages and a lack of 
development behind. However, a couple of conspicuous exceptions to this are 
the Valley Lodge Care Home and the former care home of the application site. 
Both of these building extend significantly to the rear of their plots, in 
particular the application site. Whilst the proposed inclusion of the central site 
plots (Plots 3 to 6) on the face of it appear quite out of context, when 
compared to the present situation they could in fact be viewed as an 
improvement in that they are of a much smaller footprint and overall scale. 
Whilst seemingly contrary to the general pattern of development in the 
surrounding area, the presence of the existing former care home building 
would make it difficult to demonstrate any increased harm to the character of 
the area.

52.Other minor issues are: how practical the shared driveway and parking area 
for Plots 2a & 2b would be in reality, i.e. occupiers of Plot 2a having to 
manoeuvre their car immediately in front of the living room window of their 
neighbours at 2b; potential difficulties in accessing the garage for Plot 1; the 
site access restrictions and need for a bin collection point capable of 
accommodating eleven wheelie bins and food waste caddies at the site 
entrance, which if not dealt with correctly could look unsightly.

53.Whilst these issues and those discussed earlier are of some concern, and that 
a reduction in the number of units or their size would help to overcome them 
by allowing more room to provide the necessary ancillary accommodation 
required, i.e. private gardens and parking, thereby providing a higher quality 
scheme, it is not considered that they would be sufficient to justify a refusal of 
the application, which in general accords with the minimum policy and 
guidance requirements. 

Trees

54.As highlighted above, there are a number of protected trees on the site and 
on immediately adjoining land. All but four would be retained leaving: the large 
Scots Pines to the site frontage and Cypress, albeit these would be lowered to 
form a hedge; a further Scots Pine in the middle of the site; and a Poplar and 
three Silver Birches to the rear. Those removed are a Scots Pine and conifer 
to the site frontage, and a Poplar and Weeping Willow in the centre of the site. 
In addition to these retained trees it is proposed to plant a further 13, the 
majority of which would be within the public areas of the site, together with 
soft landscape planting which would need to be maintained by a management 
company.

55.Following extensive consultations with the Council’s Tree Specialists, the 
scheme’s layout has been revised with all buildings now outside of root 
protection areas. However, special ground protection measures and surfacing 
will be required in some areas, most notably at the main site access from 
Valley Road which must pass over the root protection areas of a number of 
retained trees. A detailed Arboricultural Impact Assessment (AIA) has been 
submitted in support of the amended scheme. This has been reviewed by the 

104



Council’s Tree Specialist who has raised no objection subject to the content 
and recommendations of this assessment being followed in full. A condition to 
this effect is recommended.

56.Some concern has been raised by the Council’s Ecologist with regards to 
ground level changes within the Root Protection Area (RPA) of retained trees 
as part of flood prevention works. Whilst it is proposed to make some modest 
level alterations, these will not be within the RPA of the relevant trees, which 
will be protected from the level changes by a retaining wall around the edge of 
the RPA.

Parking & Highway Matters

57.Allocated parking to meet the Council’s ‘Residential Parking Standards’ SPD 
is provided, principally in the form of formalised parking spaces ‘on-street’ 
rather than within the curtilage of each unit. There is also sufficient room to 
provide informal visitor parking within the site, albeit not formally marked out.

58. In general the site layout is acceptable in terms of vehicle manoeuvring, 
although space is tight in a few places, such as the aisle width in front of Plot 
7 and at the main site entrance. Whilst this would not raise any concerns were 
it to be only serving a couple of dwellings, it is required to serve eleven and 
would be far busier than a normal driveway access. However, the ability to 
widen this access is compromised by the location of protected Scots Pines at 
the site frontage which are to be retained and form an important element of 
the street scene. On balance therefore, whilst not ideal, that proposed is 
acceptable. A viewed backed up by the lack of objection from Hampshire 
Highways.

59.Other highway concerns raised by those who have commented on the 
application relate to contractor parking and possible damage to highway 
verges. These concerns are noted and the recommended construction 
management condition requires details of contractor parking, and loading / 
unloading of deliveries to be provided and agreed prior to works commencing. 
Whilst the Council cannot prevent contractors from parking on the highway, 
there should be more than sufficient space on site to accommodate parking, 
site office, materials storage, etc.

Residential Amenity

60.When considering residential amenity there are two areas to look at: the 
impact of the proposed development upon existing neighbouring properties; 
and the amenity of future occupiers of the development.

61.Some concern has been raised by those objecting to the application in 
relation to overlooking and loss of privacy. In this respect the properties most 
likely to be impacted are those in Cypress Grove to the east and Heathlands 
Close to the west. The proposed site layout ensures that the orientation of 
dwellings is such that their relationship to properties in Cypress Grove is 
perpendicular, together with a reasonable separation distance, thereby 

105



resulting in no overlooking or loss of privacy to those dwellings. With regards 
to neighbouring dwellings in Heathlands Close, whilst the rear of Plots 10 & 
11 do face the rears of Nos.20-24 Heathlands Close, the distance between 
these elevations at 25 and 29 metres exceeds the 22 metre minimum 
distance set out in the Council’s ‘Quality Places’ SPD. The site layout will 
result in some increased overlooking of neighbouring gardens, but this is not 
to any unacceptable extent and is something to be expected in suburban 
areas.

62. In this respect therefore, and the other main amenity issues of light and 
outlook, whilst there will there will be some degree of impact upon 
neighbouring properties, it would not be to such an extent that it would be 
unreasonable in planning terms. As such, the proposed development does 
meet the requirements of the ‘Quality Places’ SPD and saved Policy 59.BE of 
the adopted Local Plan. Notwithstanding this, given the minimal garden sizes 
proposed, it is recommended that the usual permitted development rights 
which would allow extensions to the dwellings be removed in order to ensure 
sufficient usable external amenity space is maintained, and also to ensure 
that sufficient off-street parking is retained. Permitted development right in 
relation to the creation of hardstanding to the front of dwellings is also 
recommended for removal in order to protect the visual amenity of the 
development and quality of environment for future occupiers.

63.Looking at the amenity of future occupiers of the proposed development, as 
has been discussed above, although garden sizes are smaller than those of 
existing neighbouring plots, in some cases significantly smaller, the majority 
meet the Council’s minimum standards and generally would receive sufficient 
day and sunlight. Whilst the proposed garden sizes are generally based on 
minimum standards, the scale of internal accommodation more than exceeds 
the nationally described space standards, which goes someway to 
compensating for the smaller scale external amenity space.

64.With regards to issues of privacy, light and outlook, again whilst the site layout 
is relatively tight, there would be no unacceptable level of overlooking or loss 
of light. Equally, whilst the outlook from Plots 2a & 8 is somewhat impinged by 
the flank elevations of the neighbouring plots to their north and south, this is 
not to the extent that a strong argument could be made that the outlook from 
these plots is unacceptable.

65.A further amenity issue to take into consideration is disturbance to 
neighbouring properties during the course of demolition and construction. This 
has been highlighted by those who have commented on the application and 
can be dealt with by way of suitably worded conditions requiring approval of a 
construction management plan and restrictions on working hours, etc.

66.Overall therefore with regards to issues of amenity, the application does 
generally accord with the requirements of the ‘Quality Places’ SPD and saved 
Policy 59.BE of the adopted Local Plan.

106



Drainage & Flooding

67.Concerns have been raised in relation to both foul and surface water drainage 
issues which have affected properties on lower ground to the west of the site, 
in that the proposed development could exacerbate existing problems. 
Objections were also initially raised by both the Environment Agency (EA) and 
Hampshire County Council’s Flood and Water Management team (FWM) 
relating to a number of the proposed dwellings being within Flood Zones 2 & 3 
in which the north-western corner of the site falls.

68.Saved Policy 45.ES relates to surface water disposal and states that 
“Development proposals must incorporate adequate measures for the 
disposal of surface water from the development including, where practicable, 
source control techniques and sustainable drainage systems, incorporating 
future maintenance of the system.” Following the initial objections from the EA 
and FWM, the developer undertook further site investigations and provided an 
updated Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy (FRA). These 
investigations established that the site’s ground conditions, which are 
predominantly clay, would make natural percolation or soakaways unviable. 
As such, it is proposed to use a system of tanked permeable paving which 
would filter the surface water, hold it in a tanked layer of aggregate 
underneath, before discharging it at a controlled rate into the existing surface 
water sewer in Valley Road. Calculations show that this system would half the 
current surface water flow from the site, thereby easing pressure on the local 
surface water system.

69.Revisions were also made to the proposed site layout, which with the 
inclusion of some low retaining walls, moved the proposed dwellings out of 
Flood Zones 2 & 3. The revised FRA also demonstrates that the construction 
of these dwellings and retaining structures would not result in any further 
harm to neighbouring properties through dispersing of flood waters elsewhere. 
These layout revisions and updated FRA have been reviewed by the EA and 
FWM who have both lifted their original objections to the application, subject 
to conditions.

70.With regards to foul drainage, whilst the application site is unlikely to be 
impacted by sewer flooding, given it sits on higher ground, concerns were 
raised that the development could add to current problems. Again, this has 
been investigated by the developer and their drainage consultant and a 
comparison made as to the likely foul water flows associated with the 
proposed development compared to the existing. These calculations show 
that the flows from a 35 bedroom care home would equate to approximately 
14 dwellings. That being the case, the proposed development for 12 units 
would result in a theoretical reduction in foul water flows into the local sewer 
network. Whilst it is accepted that the former care home has been closed for a 
number of years and prior to that was not at full occupancy, any assessment 
made must be based on a worst case scenario. Although currently closed, the 
care home could reopen without the need for any planning consent, meaning 
that foul drainage equivalent to 14 dwellings could be reintroduced to the local 
network. Given this flow rate is greater than that which would be produced by 

107



the proposed development’s 12 dwellings, it is considered that there would be 
no reasonable grounds to refuse the application in this respect, particularly as 
no objection has been raised by Southern Water. However, conditions 
requiring any final drainage scheme to be approved prior to commencement 
in consultation with Southern Water are recommended.

Environmental Sustainability

71.The Council’s ‘Environmentally Sustainable Development’ SPD requires all 
new dwellings to meet a minimum of code level 4 of the Code for Sustainable 
Homes together with a number of other mandatory requirements on water and 
energy conservation. However, the code has now been revoked with the 
intension that these requirements will be assessed by Building Regulations. 
Notwithstanding this, it is Council policy that any new dwellings must meet the 
equivalent of Code Level 4 with regards to water and energy conservation. 
This is secured via a planning condition.

Nature Conservation

72.As has been highlighted above in the Council’s Ecologist’s response, 
concerns are raised with regards to the amount of clearance already 
undertaken on site and proposals for further tree removal. Concerns have 
also been highlighted that the intended site layout and landscaping scheme 
leaves little room for worthwhile new tree or landscape planting, thereby 
resulting in a likely inability to ensure a net biodiversity gain as encouraged by 
the NPPF.

73.Whilst it is disappointing that a substantial amount of site clearance was 
undertaken before any ecological surveys were undertaken, meaning the true 
extent of the development’s impact cannot be properly ascertained, the 
developer was within their rights to do this work. Although a number of trees 
are subject to preservation orders, this does not prevent the removal of any 
trees or planting which is not covered by the preservation orders. Equally, the 
site is not subject to any nature conservation designation or within close 
proximity to such a site.

74.The concerns relating to a lack of space to provide suitable replacement 
planting to mitigate for that lost and a more naturalized SuDS drainage 
scheme are shared. However, these concerns are not considered to be 
sufficient to refuse the application and there is still scope to improve the 
proposed landscape planting scheme to provide some habitat enhancement, 
together with other enhancement measures which could be secured by 
conditions.

Planning Obligations / Considerations

75. In accordance with the guidance contained within the NPPF, Saved Policies 
74.H, 101.T, 147.OS and 191.IN of the adopted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 
Review (2001-2011), Policies DM32 and DM37 of the Submission Eastleigh 
Borough Local Plan 2011-2029, the Council’s ‘Planning Obligations’ SPD and 

108



the requirements of Regulation 122 of the Community Infrastructure 
Regulations, there is a requirement for developers’ contributions to ensure on 
and off-site provision for facilities and infrastructure made necessary by the 
development, or to mitigate against any increased need/pressure on existing 
facilities.

76.Contributions / Obligations towards the provision of the following infrastructure 
have been agreed and would be secured via a Section 106 agreement index 
linked as per the Planning Obligations SPD and HCC requirements:

 Community Infrastructure
 Public Open Space & Play Provision
 Local Green Space
 Public Art

77.The projects and measures identified for contribution expenditure will comply 
with the 3 tests set out in Regulation 122 of the Community Infrastructure 
Levy 2010, in that the monies would go towards the projects which are directly 
related to the development, and are fairly and reasonably related in scale and 
kind to the proposed development. The contributions would be index-linked to 
ensure the contributions rise in line with the costs of providing the identified 
projects/measures. The obligations sought are necessary to make the 
development acceptable in planning terms and to meet the needs generated 
by the new residents and the potential impact on existing services and 
facilities.

Affordable Housing

78.The proposed scheme for twelve units would usually be required to provide an 
equivalent of 20% affordable units, which in this instance would be rounded 
down to two dwellings. However, national policy provides an incentive for 
brownfield development on sites containing vacant buildings. Where a vacant 
building is brought back into any lawful use, or is demolished to be replaced 
by a new building, the developer should be offered a financial credit 
equivalent to the existing gross floorspace of relevant vacant buildings when 
the local planning authority calculates any affordable housing contribution 
sought. In this instance, whilst the total floor space of the proposed scheme 
does exceed the existing floor space of the former care home, it is only by a 
very modest amount of a few tens of square metres. This would mean any 
figure secured, together with the restrictions on where and how any monies 
secured can be utilised, could not be realistically used.

Other Material Considerations

79.An issue which has recently arisen is ‘nutrient neutrality’ and the impact 
additional waste water from residential development is having on important 
nature conservation sites such as the Solent. This essentially relates to 
drainage and how discharges from sewerage treatment plants are affecting 
the level of nutrients in the water, which is in turn impacting upon biodiversity. 
Natural England have advised on new residential development, there is 

109



currently uncertainty over whether mitigation will be required to address the 
existing levels of nitrogen and phosphorus input to the water environment 
causing eutrophication at the international sites of Solent & Southampton 
Water Special Protection Area (SPA) and Ramsar site and the Solent 
Maritime Special Area of Conservation (SAC). Therefore in light of this 
uncertainty and for confidence that the development will be deliverable, it is 
Natural England advice that proposed residential developments achieve 
nutrient neutrality. To this end, Natural England have published draft 
methodology to calculate nitrate levels and for new development recommend 
information is provided regarding the existing and predicted levels of nitrates 
leaching into the water environment to give a “nutrient budget”, and that this 
budget should be able to demonstrate no increase in nutrients, known as 
“nutrient neutrality”. Where an increase in nutrient levels is expected, Natural 
England advise mitigation should be devised prior to issuing a decision to 
offset this increase and ensure the protected habitats are protected. Following 
recent case law, the Council are no longer able to condition mitigation details 
be provided post permission being granted. 

80.The Council are currently considering the implications of this issue and how 
where needed, mitigation can be secured and delivered. Such mitigation 
could be direct through on-site sewage treatment provision, through 
upgrading existing sewage treatment works or reducing the amount of water 
used within the development; or indirect through the offsetting of nitrogen 
generation from development by taking land out of nitrogen intensive uses 
(e.g. agricultural uses including arable and livestock farming). For smaller 
development schemes, mitigation may take the form of contributions towards 
off-site measures. The impact, if any, will need to be set out within an 
Appropriate Assessment as required by Article 6 of the EC Habitats Directive 
1992, and interpreted into British law by the Conservation of Habitats and 
Species Regulations 2017. The Assessment is to be undertaken by the 
Council as the Competent Authority. Whilst this application can be referred to 
committee and a resolution to grant permission reached, the nutrient neutrality 
matter will need to be resolved prior to the decision being issued. The Council 
are reviewing the options for mitigation in consultation with Natural England. 
As part of the assessment, regard will need to be had to the impact of the 
existing care home.

81.Notwithstanding this, as has been discussed above, it has been demonstrated 
that the foul sewerage flows resulting from the proposed development would 
be less than those of the 35 bedroom care home currently on site. That being 
the case, this would result in a reduction in overall flows, therefore resulting in 
less impact upon nutrient levels. As such, it is considered that the LPA can 
reasonably consider approving the proposed application without fear of 
adding to the present situation. Natural England has been consulted on this 
view and their response is awaited.

Conclusion

82.Closure of the Moorwood care home in 2014 and the lack of any viable 
interesting in reopening it is considered to demonstrate that the facility is 

110



surplus to requirements. As such, the proposed redevelopment of the site is 
considered to be acceptable in principle. Equally, a housing scheme would be 
suitable for the residential nature of the surrounding area. That being the 
case, a judgement needs to be made as to whether the scheme proposed is 
acceptable in terms of its design, impact upon the surrounding area and 
neighbouring occupiers, as well as the quality of environment created for 
future residents of the development.

83.As discussed above, whilst the development does not quite meet minimum 
standards in some aspects, and there are a number of concerns with 
particular elements of the development which could be improved upon, these 
are not considered to be sufficient to justify a refusal of the application. On 
balance therefore, whilst these concerns remain, the application proposal is 
considered to meet the general requirements of the relevant saved policies of 
the adopted Local Plan and the Council’s supplementary planning documents, 
albeit a reduction in the number or size of units would allow for a number of 
these concerns to be better addressed. Notwithstanding this, the application is 
recommended for approval subject to: i) revisions to the site layout which will 
accommodate a bin collection area in an acceptable manner; and ii) the 
securing of planning obligations towards:- Community Infrastructure; Public 
Open Space & Play Provision, including towards the provision of Local Green 
Space; and Public Art; as well as the conditions listed above.

111



112



CFH – Chandlers Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee Wednesday 19 June 
2019. 
 
Application Number: F/18/84154 
Case Officer: Gary Osmond 
Received Date: Wednesday 3 October 2018 

 
Site Address: 9 VALLEY ROAD, CHANDLER'S FORD, EASTLEIGH, SO53 

1GQ 
 

Applicant: Sam Doswell 
 

Proposal: Construction of 4No, two bedroom, 5No. three bedroom and 
3No. four bedroom dwellings with associated amenity space 
and parking, following demolition of existing care home. 
 

Recommendation: PERMIT 
Subject to: i) revisions to the site layout which will accommodate 

a bin collection area in an acceptable manner; and 
ii) the securing of planning obligations towards:- 

Community Infrastructure; Public Open Space & 
Play Provision, including towards the provision of 
Local Green Space; and Public Art. 

 
CONDITIONS AND REASONS 
 
1 
 
 

The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with 
the following plans numbered:170718, 197 P-00, 3117-VALL-ICS-XX-RP-C-
07.001, 7515, 7515 L01, 7515_D01 Rev.N, 7515_D02 Rev.B, 7515_D03 Rev.F, 
7515_D04, 7515_D05, 7515_D06 Rev.A, 7515_D07 Rev.A, 7515_D08 Rev.A, 
7515_D09 Rev.A, 7515_D10, 7515_D11, 7515_D12, 7515_D13, 7515_D14 
Rev.B, 7515_D15 Rev.B, 7515_D16, 7515_D17, 7515_E01, 7515_E02, 
7515_E03, C031801-01, C12273, DP147, ENC/1903/18/7BB5, GWPR2641, 
GWPR2641 P, TT.DOS.VAL.501 Rev.B, VALL-ICS-01-XX-DR-C-001-P4, 
VALL-ICS-01-XX-DR-C-002-P3, VALL-ICS-01-XX-DR-C-050-P1, VALL-ICS-01-
XX-DR-C-051-P1-S2 & VR250918-01 Rev.A. 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 

2 
 
 

The development hereby permitted shall start no later than three years from the 
date of this decision. 
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990.  
 

3 
 
 

No construction or demolition work shall start until a Method Statement has 
been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. 
Demolition and construction work shall only take place in accordance with the 
approved method statement which shall include: 
a) a programme and phasing of the demolition and construction work, including 
roads, landscaping and communal space; 
b) location of temporary site buildings, compounds, construction material and 

113



plant storage areas used during demolition and construction; 
c) the arrangements for the routing / turning of lorries and details for 
construction traffic access to the site; 
d) the arrangements for deliveries associated with all construction works, 
loading / unloading of plant & materials and restoration of any damage to the 
highway, including vehicle crossovers and grass verges; 
e) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors; 
f) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt generated by demolition and 
construction; 
g) a scheme for controlling noise and vibration from demolition and construction 
activities (to include piling); 
h) provision for storage, collection, and disposal of rubbish from the 
development during construction period; 
i) measures to prevent mud and dust on the highway during demolition and 
construction; 
j) the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative 
displays and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate; 
k) temporary lighting; and 
l) protection of pedestrian routes during construction. 
Reason: To limit the impact the development has on the amenity of the locality 
and neighbouring occupiers. 
 

4 
 
 

Development shall not commence until a Construction Environmental 
Management Plan (CEMP) detailing construction SuDS and other mechanisms 
to ensure that there is no pollution of the surface water drainage system during 
the course of demolition and construction has been submitted to and agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The agreed CEMP shall then be 
followed in full throughout the course of demolition and construction works.  
Reason: To ensure water quality is preserved and protected species 
populations are not impacted. 
 

5 
 
 

No construction, demolition or deliveries to the site shall take place during the 
construction period except between the hours of 0800 to 1800 Mondays to 
Fridays or 0900 to 1300 on Saturdays and not at all on Sundays or Bank 
Holidays. 
Reason: To protect the amenities of the occupiers of nearby dwellings. 
 

6 
 
 

No burning of materials obtained by site clearance or any other source shall 
take place during the demolition, construction and fitting out process. 
Reason: To protect the amenities of the occupiers of nearby properties. 
 

7 
 
 

No driven pilling shall take place on the development hereby permitted. 
Reason: To protect the amenity of the occupiers of the nearby dwellings. 
 

8 
 
 

Prior to reaching DPC level of the first dwelling unit, details of the materials to 
be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development hereby 
permitted, including window frames, fascias and soffits, rainwater goods, porch 
canopies and front doors, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details. 

114



Reason: To ensure a satisfactory visual appearance in the interest of the 
amenities of the area. 
 

9 
 
 

The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the 
submitted flood risk assessment (ref: document reference 3117-VALL-ICS-XX-
RP-C-07.001, Revision E, dated 12 April 2019, and compiled by Infrastruct CS 
Ltd.) and the following mitigation measures it details: 
a) Finished floor levels shall be set as detailed below and in Table 7.8.D and 
Appendix H: 
- Plot 1 finished floor levels shall be set no lower than 31.95m above Ordnance 
Datum (AOD) as detailed in Table 7.8.D and Appendix H;  
- Plot 2 finished floor levels shall be set no lower than 32.56m above Ordnance 
Datum (AOD) as detailed in Table 7.8.D and Appendix H; 
- Plots 3, 4, 5 and 6 finished floor levels shall be set no lower than 31.80m 
above Ordnance Datum (AOD) as detailed in Table 7.8.D and Appendix H; 
- Plot 7 finished floor levels shall be set no lower than 31.85m above Ordnance 
Datum (AOD) as detailed in Table 7.8.D and Appendix H; 
- Plots 8 and 9 finished floor levels shall be set no lower than 31.90m above 
Ordnance Datum (AOD) as detailed in Table 7.8.D and Appendix H; and 
- Plots 10 and 11 finished floor levels shall be set no lower than 32.15m above 
Ordnance Datum (AOD) as detailed in Table 7.8.D and Appendix H. 
b) Compensatory storage shall be provided to the North West corner of the 
proposed site, using the 1% AEP 105% CC allowance, the proposed volume of 
storage should be 18.00m3 for contour band 30.97m to 31.17m, 36.10m3 for 
contour band 31.17m to 31.37m and 4.70m3 for contour band 31.37m to 
31.67m as detailed in Table 7.8.E, Appendix H.  
These mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation and 
subsequently in accordance with the scheme’s timing/phasing arrangements. 
The measures detailed above shall be retained and maintained thereafter 
throughout the lifetime of the development. 
Reason: In line with section 9 of the Planning Practice Guidance of the National 
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) for Flood Risk and Coastal Change to 
reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future occupants 
and prevent flooding elsewhere by ensuring that compensatory storage of flood 
water is provided. 
 

10 
 
 

No development shall start until details for the disposal of foul sewerage from 
the development hereby permitted have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with Southern Water. The 
development shall then accord with the approved details. 
Reason: To ensure satisfactory provision of foul and surface water drainage. 
 

 
 
 

Note to Applicant: A formal application for connection to the public sewerage 
system is required in order to service this development, please contact 
Southern Water, Sparrowgrove House, Sparrowgrove, Otterbourne, Hampshire 
SO21 2SW (Tel: 0330 303 0119) or www.southernwater.co.uk. Please read our 
New Connections Services Charging Arrangements documents which has now 
been published and is available to read on our website via the following link 
https://beta.southernwater.co.uk/infrastructurecharges. 
 

115



11 
 
 

No development shall start until details of a sustainable drainage system have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in 
consultation with Southern Water. The details shall include a timetable for its 
implementation and a management/ maintenance plan for the lifetime of the 
development, including the arrangements for adoption by any public body or 
statutory undertaker, or any other arrangements to secure the effective 
operation of the sustainable drainage system throughout its lifetime. 
Reason: To ensure satisfactory drainage for the development. 
 

12 
 
 

The agreed Sustainable Drainage Scheme with any necessary landscaping 
shall be fully implemented and written verification by an appropriate drainage 
consultant of its implementation in accordance with the approved plans and 
supporting drainage statements shall be provided to the Local Planning 
Authority prior to the first occupation of any dwelling unit. The sustainable 
drainage scheme shall thereafter be retained, maintained and managed in 
accordance with the approved management and maintenance statement.  
Reason: To ensure adequate drainage and to prevent flooding and pollution. 
  

13 
 
 

Prior to reaching DPC level of the first dwelling unit, details for the on site 
provision of bin & cycle storage facilities shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. No dwelling unit shall be occupied until 
its allocated bin & cycle storage has been provided/ constructed in accordance 
with the approved details and thereafter retained and kept available. 
Reason: To ensure the adequate provision of on site facilities. 
 

14 
 
 

Prior to reaching DPC level of the first dwelling unit, details of biodiversity 
mitigation and enhancement measures to include: integral bird, bat and bee 
features installed in every dwelling; details of external lighting to minimise light 
spill into landscaped areas; and ecological landscape enhancement, shall be 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The agreed 
measures shall then be implemented in full prior to the occupation of the 
building, unless agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
Reason: To ensure suitable mitigation and enhancement for lost habitat. 
 

15 
 
 

The development hereby approved must accord with the arboricultural report 
reference MB190205-01 dated February 2019. No excavation, demolition or 
development related works shall commence until the tree protection fencing and 
ground protection has been installed as per the tree protection plan contained 
within the report. Once installed, no access by vehicles or placement of goods, 
chemicals, fuels, soil or other materials shall take place within the protected 
area. Tree protection measures shall be retained in their approved form for the 
duration of the work. This condition may only be fully discharged upon 
completion of the proposed development 
Reason: To retain and protect the existing trees which form an important part of 
the amenity of the locality. 
 

16 
 
 

Prior to reaching DPC level of the first dwelling, a landscaping scheme shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
scheme shall cover all hard & soft landscaping, including trees, boundary 
treatment and biodiversity enhancement, and shall provide details of timings for 

116



all landscaping and any future maintenance. The works shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved plans and to the appropriate British Standard 
within twelve months of completion of the last building shell. 
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenity of the locality, biodiversity and to 
safeguard the amenities of neighbouring residents. 
 

17 
 
 

All hard & soft landscaping, tree planting and boundary treatment shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved details and to the appropriate 
British Standard. For a period of 5 years after planting, any trees or plants 
which are removed, die or become seriously damaged or defective, shall be 
replaced as soon as is reasonably practicable with others of the same species, 
size and number as originally approved in the landscaping scheme. 
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenity of the locality and to safeguard 
the amenities of neighbouring residents. 
 

18 
 
 

Prior to reaching DPC level of the first dwelling, details of the main site access 
alterations/ improvements, including any footway and verge crossing, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in 
consultation with the Highway Authority. The development shall not be 
occupied/ brought into use until the approved details have been fully 
implemented unless agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason: To ensure satisfactory vehicular access. 
 

19 
 
 

Any first floor windows on the side elevations of all plots shall be obscure 
glazed to Pilkingtons level 3 or equivalent with no opening parts less than 1.7 
metres above the floor level of the rooms they serve, or be positioned with their 
lower sill at least 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which they are 
installed. Once installed the windows shall be permanently maintained in that 
condition. 
Reason: To protect the amenity and privacy of the adjoining residential 
properties. 
 

20 
 
 

Notwithstanding the provisions of The Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, or any order revoking and re-
enacting that Order with or without modification, no development permitted by 
Classes A, B, C or D of Part 1 of Schedule 2 of the order shall be carried out 
without the prior written consent of The Local Planning Authority. 
Reason: To protect the amenities of the locality and neighbouring properties, 
and to maintain a good quality living environment. 
 

21 Notwithstanding the provisions of The Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, or any order revoking and re-
enacting that Order with or without modification, no development permitted by 
Class F of Part 1 of Schedule 2 of the order shall be carried out to the frontage 
of any dwelling hereby approved without the prior written consent of The Local 
Planning Authority. 
Reason: To protect the amenities of the locality and neighbouring properties, 
and to maintain a good quality living environment. 
 

22 Prior to the occupation of any building within each individual phase of the 

117



 
 

development [or, in accordance with a timetable to be agreed in writing with the 
Local Planning Authority], as built stage SAP data and as built stage water 
calculator confirming energy efficiency and the predicted internal mains water 
consumption to achieve the following shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority: In respect of energy efficiency, a 
standard of a 19% improvement of dwelling emission rate over the target 
emission rate as set in the 2013 Building Regulations In respect of water 
consumption, a maximum predicted internal mains water consumption of 105 
litres/person/day. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the approved details. 
Reason: To support a comprehensive approach to high quality design across 
the site; in line with the guidance set out in the Government's Ministerial 
Statement of 25 March 2015 which states that Local Planning Authorities 
should, from the date of its publication, take into account the government's 
intentions in the statement and not set conditions with requirements above a 
Code level 4 equivalent. 
 

23 
 
 

No dwelling unit shall be brought into use until its allocated parking spaces have 
been constructed, surfaced and marked out in accordance with the approved 
plan and safe access to Valley Road provided. The approved parking area shall 
not thereafter be used for any purpose other than the turning, parking, loading 
and unloading of vehicles. 
Reason: To make provision for off street parking for the purpose of highway 
safety. 
 

24 
 
 

The development hereby permitted shall not be brought into use until a turning 
space has been provided within the site to enable vehicles to enter and leave in 
forward gear. The turning space shall subsequently be retained and kept 
available for such purposes at all times. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 
 

25 
 
 

The development hereby permitted shall not be brought into use until visibility 
splays of 2.4 metres by 43 metres have been provided at the junction of the 
access and the public highway. Nothing over 0.6m in height above the level of 
the carriageway shall be placed or permitted to remain within the visibility splay. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 
 

26 Written verification by an appropriate consultant confirming that the construction 
of all unadopted roads and footpaths within the development is in accordance 
with the approved plans and details shall be provided to the Local Planning 
Authority prior to the first occupation of the 10th dwelling unit.  
Reason: To ensure that the development is provided to an appropriate 
standard.  
 

 
 
 

Note to Applicant: In accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework (February 2019), Eastleigh Borough Council takes a positive 
approach to the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever 
possible, a positive outcome and to ensure all proposals are dealt with in a 
timely manner. 
 

118



 
 
 

Note to Applicant: the permission does not authorise the undertaking of any 
works involving excavations in the carriageway, footway or verge. A road 
opening permit must be obtained from Hampshire Highways, HCC call centre 
number 0845 6035633. 
 

 
 
 

Note to Applicant: It is requested that the building works are carried out 
considerately to minimise disruption to the occupiers of the neighbouring 
properties. The council operates a code of best practice, which is available on 
the council's website www.eastleigh.gov.uk by following the links to Planning, 
Guidance on the process, scroll down to Guidance on Aspects of the Planning 
& Construction Process and select considerate builders advice note. 
 

 
 
 

Note to Applicant: In accordance with Appendix C of the Council's adopted 
Policy Quality Places SPD, the Council requires developers to meet the cost of 
bins for general and recycling waste. These must be purchased from the 
Council's Direct Services unit. 
 

 

 
Report: 

 
This application has been referred to Committee because it is a major 
application. 

 
Description of Application 

 
1. The application seeks consent for the construction of 4No, two bedroom, 5No. 

three bedroom and 3No. four bedroom dwellings with associated amenity 
space and parking, following demolition of existing care home. These would 
be made up of a mixture of detached and semi-detached properties with 
access from Valley Road. 

 
Site Area & Residential Development Density (Net) 

 
2. The application site measures 4410 square metres, which results in a density 

of just over 27 dwellings per hectare for the twelve unit scheme proposed. 
 

Topography, Trees & Boundary Treatment 
 

3. The site is generally flat and level, with a very modest fall of around a metre 
from the front south-eastern to rear north-western corners. There are a 
number of groups of trees across the site, as well as other individual 
specimens just outside the site boundaries on neighbouring land. The majority 
of these trees are subject to Tree Preservation Orders (TPOs). The most 
noticeable group are those to the very front of the site along the Valley Road 
frontage which is predominantly made up of Scots Pine, as well as a dense 
line of Lawson Cypress. Other trees across the site include Scots Pine, Silver 
Birch, Poplar and Weeping Willow. In terms of boundary treatments, while the 
site frontage is defined by the line of Cypress, the majority of the remaining 
boundaries are marked by 1.8 – 2.0 metre close boarded fencing. 

119



 
Site Characteristics & Character of Locality 

 
4. The application site is large, even in comparison to the average Valley Road 

plot size. The site was last used as a nursing home, closing in 2014. The 
majority of the site has been developed, consisting of a sizable car park 
immediately behind the frontage trees, accessed via two vehicular entrances 
onto Valley Road. Behind the car park are the original Moorwood Cottage, a 
sizable 1920s/30s chalet bungalow, and a fairly typical 1960s two storey 
dwelling. These original dwellings have been enlarged and linked together 
through a series of extensions, including a very deep, predominantly single 
storey addition to the rear which extends some 50+ metres into the site. 
Between this large addition and the site boundaries are landscaped amenity 
areas, including a pond towards the north-western corner of the site. 

 
5. The surrounding area is predominantly residential in nature, although there 

are two remaining nursing homes in Valley Road: ‘The Beeches’ and ‘Valley 
Lodge’, as well as a children’s nursery, ‘Little 1 Nursery’. Most properties 
along this stretch of Valley Road are good size two storey detached dwellings 
on sizable plots, although there are some examples of semi-detached 
dwellings, most dating from around 1910 to 1930s. Further to the west the 
character of the street is a little more mixed consisting of 1920s semis and 
detached bungalows, through to more recent additions to the street. In 
general, the street has a fairly spacious and green character. 

 
6. Other development surrounding the application site consists of 1960s/70s 

semi-detached dwellings and more recent back-land development which is 
from the early 2000s. 

 
Relevant Planning History 

 
7. There are various planning applications and pre-application enquiries relating 

to the site’s former use as a nursing/care home but this is the first such 
proposal to develop the site for residential purposes. 

 
Representations Received 

 
8. A total of 21 representations have been received from 17 addresses: 4 

objecting; 11 in support; and 6 commenting. 
 

9. Those objecting to the application have raised the following points: 
 

 Overlooking and loss of privacy. 

 Loss of light. 

 Flooding and drainage concerns. 

 Revised street scene not in keeping with Valley Road. 

 Loss of trees. 

 Disturbance during demolition and construction. 

 Devaluation of neighbouring properties. 
 

120



10. Those in support have made the following comments: 
 

 Redevelopment of the site would improve the appearance of the street and 
get rid of a derelict building. 

 Would contribute to “much needed” new housing in the locality. 

 Good range of housing proposed. 

 Would make a good use of a brownfield site. 
 

11. Whilst those neither supporting nor objecting to the application have 
highlighted the following issues: 

 

 Care should be taken to retain protected trees. 

 The amenity of neighbouring properties should be protected. 

 Appropriate boundary treatment to be provided. 

 Protection of neighbours during demolition and construction. 

 Neighbouring properties and those downhill of the site should be protected 
from flooding and existing drainage issues. 

 Replacement trees should be provided. 

 Contractors should not park on Valley Road or verges. 
 

Consultation Responses 
 

12. Tree Officer – No objection provided the revised and updated arboricultural 
documents are followed in full. A condition to this effect is recommended. 

 
13. Environmental Health – No objection subject to amenity protection 

conditions during demolition and construction. 
 

14. Ecology Officer – Holding objection on the grounds of loss “unacknowledged 
and unacceptable loss of biodiversity”. Most vegetation on site had been 
cleared prior to ecology surveys being carried out. A number of potentially 
worthy trees are to be removed with little room for suitable replacements. The 
proposed landscaping is insufficient to compensate for habitat already lost 
and does not appear to follow the recommendations of the ecology report. 
 

15. The ecology survey shows site trees as having negligible bat roost potential. 
However, a garage has been identified as a single pipistrelle roost and the 
site as having high levels of bat foraging and commuting activity. A better 
landscape scheme and more tree retention would ensure no net loss of 
suitable habitat. 
 

16. Again, better landscape proposals and more tree retention would ensure no 
net loss of suitable habitat for birds. 
 

17. Regarding drainage, it is unclear if the proposed system will provide sufficient 
filtration of surface water before being discharged off site. “It is regrettable that 
a naturalised form of SuDS has not been provided on the site as this would 
have encompassed the full principles of SuDS.” 
 

121



18. Proposed compensatory flood storage is to be provided by lowering ground 
levels. However, this is within the root protection area of retained trees which 
would damage tree roots. The creation of a permanent wetland area would be 
of benefit, assisting with local flood issues as well as providing habitat. 
 

19. Conditions recommended requiring bird, bat and bee features to be installed 
in all dwellings, the need for suitable external lighting to protect bats, and the 
need for a Construction Environmental Management Plan to be agreed prior 
to commencement. 

 
20. Direct Services – Has requested that a bin collection point should be 

provided at the site entrance with room for a 240ltr wheeled bin and 25ltr food 
waste caddy per household. 

 
21. Housing Enabling Officer – “This application triggers a 20% affordable 

housing requirement and on the basis of the proposal for a total of 11 
dwellings, 20% equates to 2 dwellings. However, the information submitted 
advises that Vacant Building Credit is applicable to the proposed development 
which negates any affordable housing contribution. On this basis I have no 
further comments to make.” 

 
22. Hampshire Highways – No objection. The existing site access positions are 

acceptable with adequate visibility and no known accident record. Parking 
appears adequate but this is for Eastleigh Borough Council to consider. 
However, it is suggested that some parking spaces be widened when 
immediately adjacent to a wall. The internal layout of the site appears 
acceptable but confirmation that it can accommodate the correct size refuse 
vehicle would be required via an updated tracking drawing, as that shown 
appears under standard. 

 
23. It is the opinion of the Highway Authority that trip generation associated with 

the proposed residential use would be less than or no greater than the former 
care home use. As such no transport contributions are sought. 

 
24. Chandler’s Ford Parish Council – Concerns expressed regarding the 

proximity of Plot 7 to Flood Zones 2/3, as well as the potential impact of the 
development to add to existing foul sewer flooding issues elsewhere in Valley 
Road. 

 
25. Environment Agency – No objection to the revised Flood Risk Assessment 

and Drainage Strategy, Issue E, submitted in support of the application 
provided a condition is included requiring the approved development to follow 
the recommendations of the assessment. 

 
26. HCC Flood & Water Management – No objection. The revised Flood Risk 

Assessment and Drainage Strategy, Issue E, has addressed all previous 
points. “Therefore we consider that the proposals for surface water drainage 
meet the current standards/best practice in relation to surface water 
drainage.” 

 

122



27. Southern Water – No objection. Consent will be required from Southern 
Water to connect the development to the public foul sewer and final details of 
drainage should be agreed in consultation with Southern Water prior to 
commencement. 

 
28. Natural England – No objection subject to the approval of a Biodiversity 

Mitigation and Enhancement Plan. 
 

29. HCC Children’s Services – No comments received. 
 

30. University Hospital Southampton – Requests a financial contribution 
towards providing health care services to meet increased demand. 

 
Policy Context:  Designation Applicable to Site 

 

 Within Built-up Area Boundary 

 Within Established Residential Area 
 

Development Plan Saved Policies and Emerging Local Plan Policies 
 

31. Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011) saved Policies: 25.NC, 
28.ES, 34.ES, 43.ES, 45.ES, 59.BE, 74.H, 100.T, 102.T, 146.OS, 185.IN & 
191.IN 

 
32. Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029, July 2014 

The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 was submitted for examination 
in July 2014 but the Inspector concluded that insufficient housing was being 
provided for in the Plan and that it was unsound.  While this has not been 
withdrawn and remains a material consideration, it can therefore be 
considered to have extremely limited weight in the determination of this 
application. 

 
33. Emerging Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036 

The Council undertook public consultation on an updated Local Plan (2016 – 
2036) during the summer of 2018 with the plan being formally submitted to the 
Secretary of State in October 2018. Given the status of the Emerging Plan, it 
is considered that limited weight can be attributed to it. 

 
34. Supplementary Planning Documents 

 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Quality Places (November 2011) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Biodiversity (December 2009) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Residential Parking Standards 
(January 2009) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Environmentally Sustainable 
Development (March 2009) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Planning Obligations (July 2008, 
updated 2010) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Affordable Housing (July 2009) 
 

123



National Planning Policy Framework 
 

35. At a national level, the National Planning Policy Framework (the ‘NPPF’ or the 
‘Framework’) is a material consideration of significant weight in the 
determination of planning applications. The NPPF states that (as required by 
statute) applications for planning permission must be determined in 
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise and sets out a general presumption in favour of sustainable 
development. 

 
36. The three identified dimensions of sustainability should to be sought jointly: 

economic (supporting economy and ensuring land availability); social 
(providing housing, creating high quality environment with accessible local 
services); and environmental (contributing to, protecting and enhancing 
natural, built and historic environment) whilst local circumstances should also 
be taken into account, so that development appropriately responds to the 
different opportunities for achieving sustainable development in different 
areas. 

 
National Planning Practice Guidance  

 
37. Where material the Planning Practice Guidance which supports the provisions 

and policies of the NPPF should be afforded weight in the consideration and 
determination of planning applications. 

 
Policy Commentary 

 
38. The above policies and guidance combine to form the criteria against which 

this application will be assessed with particular regard to: planning policy and 
the principle of that proposed; the loss of the former care home; the layout 
and design of that proposed and its impact upon the street scene and 
character of the surrounding area; trees; parking and highway matters; 
residential amenity; drainage and flooding; environmental sustainability: and 
nature conservation. 

 
Comment on Consultation Responses and Representations Received 

 
39. A response to the majority of planning related matters is given below. With 

regards to concerns relating to the devaluation of neighbouring properties, 
while these concerns are noted, the impact of any development upon the 
value of property is not a material planning consideration and cannot be used 
as a reason to approve or refuse an application. 

 
40. In response to the request from University Hospital Southampton NHS 

Foundation Trust for financial contributions, this has been reviewed by 
Development Management and Legal Specialists who are of the opinion that 
the request and the justification given does not comply with the requirements 
of the CIL regulations. As such, no such contributions are sought from this 
development. 

 

124



Assessment of Proposal: Development Plan and / or Legislative 
Background 

 
41. Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states:- 

 
"If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any 
determination to be made under the planning Acts the determination must 
be made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise." 

 
In this case policy issues for consideration include: 

 
Planning Policy & Principle 

 
42. The application site lies within the urban edge where the basic principle of 

development is considered to be acceptable. It also lies within an established 
residential area, meaning that further proposals for residential development 
would be generally appropriate for the nature of the surrounding area. 
However, any formal planning approval will be based upon the exact nature, 
design and impact of that proposed being considered appropriate and in 
accordance with the relevant Local Plan policies and Supplementary Planning 
Documents. The most relevant policy in this case is saved Policy 59.BE of the 
adopted Local Plan which requires development to take full and proper 
account of the context of the site including the character and appearance of 
the locality and be appropriate in mass, scale, materials, layout, design and 
siting. It also requires a high standard of landscape design, a satisfactory 
means of access and layout for vehicles, cyclists and pedestrians, to make 
provision for refuse and cycle storage and avoid unduly impacting on 
neighbouring uses through overlooking, loss of light, loss of outlook, and 
noise and fumes. 

 
Loss of Care Home 

 
43. Whilst the former care home was run by a private company, it could 

nonetheless be considered as a community facility given that it did provide a 
service to the local community. As such, saved Policy 185.IN of the adopted 
Local Plan would apply. This policy relates to the loss of established 
community facilities and states that the Council will not allow development 
which would result in the loss or removal of an established community facility 
unless suitable alternative provision is made which is of an acceptable quality 
and appropriately located to serve the needs of the community, or that it can 
be demonstrated that the facility is surplus to local needs. 

 
44. As has been set out above, the home has been closed since 2014, with little 

or no viable interest shown in reopening it as a care facility. This is likely for a 
number of reasons, principal of which is the amount of work required to bring 
it up to current standards and being too small to be financially viable in the 
current climate. Given the current position and the length of time the home 
has been closed, during which it is presumed other care homes have taken up 
any shortfall in provision, it is considered that the former care home can be 

125



viewed as being surplus to local needs. As such, its loss would not be 
deemed contrary to saved Policy 185.IN of the adopted Local Plan. 

 
Layout, Design, Street Scene & Area Character 

 
45. As set out above, the application seeks consent for the construction of 4No, 

two bedroom, 5No. three bedroom and 3No. four bedroom dwellings with 
associated amenity space and parking, following demolition of the existing 
care home. The site is rectangular in shape, being approximately 35 metres 
wide and 120 metres deep and having a north – south orientation. Both 
existing vehicular access points would be reused, that to the west serving a 
single detached four bedroom dwelling, and that to the east being the main 
access point which would serve the remainder of the development, with the 
internal road running along the eastern boundary of the site. 

 
46. Fronting onto Valley Road is the detached four bedroom dwelling previously 

mentioned (Plot 1), together with a pair of three bedroom semi-detached 
houses which utilise a shared parking area (Plots 2a & 2b). Behind these, 
orientated parallel to Valley Road but fronting the internal site road, are two 
pairs of two bedroom semi-detached dwellings (Plots 3 to 6). Whilst not quite 
chalet bungalow in form, they do have lower ridgelines and eaves which give 
them a reduced scale compared to a full two storey dwelling. These plots 
would have more formal ‘on-street’ parking rather than individual driveways. 
Behind these, facing north, are three more three bedroom dwellings – a 
detached (Plot 7) and a pair of semi-detached (Plots 8 & 9) – again with on-
street parking rather than driveways. And finally to the north of these would be 
two detached four bedroom houses (Plots 10 & 11). Parking for Plot 10 would 
be on-street and set to its rear, with parking for Plot 11 again on-street and to 
its front at the end of a turning head. All plots would have a private rear 
garden at least 10.0 metres deep. 

 
47. In terms of architectural style, it is proposed to use a very traditional form and 

materials. All dwellings would have pitched roofs covered in clay or slate tiles, 
red brick is used throughout, with brick detailing, bay windows, lead porch 
canopies and decorative bargeboards to provide interest, including faux tax 
windows. Whilst Valley Road is relatively mixed overall, that proposed does 
take some inspiration from the older original Edwardian villas which front the 
street. 

 
48. An objection has been raised with regards to the impact of the development 

upon the Valley Road street scene, highlighting that semi-detached dwellings 
are not prevalent. It is accepted that the majority of properties along this 
stretch of the road are predominantly detached but there are examples of 
semi-detached properties nearby, namely Nos.2 & 4 which are a hansom pair 
of original Edwardian dwellings. This inclusion of a pair of semi-detached 
properties to the frontage does in fact assist in providing an appropriate 
increase in scale between the two existing properties which immediately 
neighbour the site, No.11 being a slightly more modest 1950s/60s dwelling 
and No.7 being a far larger original Edwardian detached villa. This transition 
across the site is considered to be appropriate and the much closer 

126



positioning to the Valley Road frontage in fact reinforces the existing building 
line, something the present building does not. There is also an intension to 
retain the main protected trees and enhance the planting to the frontage, 
which will assist in softening the physical impact of the development. 

 
49. Whilst the proposed development immediately fronting onto Valley Road is 

considered to be generally acceptable, there are some reservations relating to 
the layout, or more specifically the quantity and form of development 
proposed for the remainder of the site and how well this sits with the 
prevailing pattern of development in the area. This part of Chandler’s Ford is 
generally characterized by detached and semi-detached dwellings on good 
size plots, Valley Road in particular being one street where the plot sizes are 
rather generous. Even the ‘denser’ development of streets such as 
Heathlands Close, Cypress Grove and Acorn Drive, which are all in relatively 
close proximity to the site, have reasonable size plots and gardens by modern 
standards. In contrast, the number of units proposed for the application site 
has resulted in plot and garden sizes which are noticeably smaller than the 
vast majority of surrounding plots, even the smallest of those in Heathlands 
Close. Notwithstanding this, all proposed plots with the exception of Plot 8 
meet the Council’s ‘Quality Places’ Supplementary Planning Document 
guidance on garden size, which states that dwellings should be provided with 
useable gardens which are a minimum of 60% of the floor area of the dwelling 
which it serves (Plot 8 equates to 54%). This guidance also states that when a 
garden faces within 30 degrees of due north, it should have a minimum depth 
of 12.0 metres. Whilst this standard is met for Plot 1, the garden depths for 
Plots 2a & 2b at 10.0 metres fall short due to the dwellings having to be set 
slightly further back in order to avoid impact on the frontage trees. Whilst 
failing to meet these minimum standards for a small number of plots, in 
general that proposed is considered to acceptably balance the necessary 
requirements with site constraints. As such, it would be unreasonable to justify 
a refusal of the application on the grounds of plot/garden size. 

 
50. Another result of the number of units proposed and the need to meet the 

Council’s parking standards is how the site frontage of almost all the proposed 
plots are dealt with. Each of the two and three bedroom dwellings are required 
to have a minimum of two off-road parking spaces, with three spaces being 
required for the four bedroom dwellings. The tight arrangement of the plots 
and the need to provide adequate room to manoeuvre in and out of a parking 
space has resulted in all but Plots 1, 2a & 2b having to utilise formal street 
parking rather than the more informal driveway parking used elsewhere in the 
surrounding area. Whilst this would not necessarily cause an issue for the 
street scene, being that this would only be noticeable whilst within the site, it 
is an arrangement which is quite out of context with the character of the 
surrounding area in that it something far more likely to be found in a much 
denser urban context rather than the much looser green suburban context of 
Valley Road. However, again this is not considered to be sufficient grounds to 
refuse the application. 

 
51. One of the other characteristics of this part of Valley Road is the lack of built 

form of any noticeable scale within the rear gardens of properties. If viewed as 

127



a simple figure and ground diagram this would be clearly evident by the 
positioning of most development towards the street frontages and a lack of 
development behind. However, a couple of conspicuous exceptions to this are 
the Valley Lodge Care Home and the former care home of the application site. 
Both of these building extend significantly to the rear of their plots, in 
particular the application site. Whilst the proposed inclusion of the central site 
plots (Plots 3 to 6) on the face of it appear quite out of context, when 
compared to the present situation they could in fact be viewed as an 
improvement in that they are of a much smaller footprint and overall scale. 
Whilst seemingly contrary to the general pattern of development in the 
surrounding area, the presence of the existing former care home building 
would make it difficult to demonstrate any increased harm to the character of 
the area. 

 
52. Other minor issues are: how practical the shared driveway and parking area 

for Plots 2a & 2b would be in reality, i.e. occupiers of Plot 2a having to 
manoeuvre their car immediately in front of the living room window of their 
neighbours at 2b; potential difficulties in accessing the garage for Plot 1; the 
site access restrictions and need for a bin collection point capable of 
accommodating eleven wheelie bins and food waste caddies at the site 
entrance, which if not dealt with correctly could look unsightly. 

 
53. Whilst these issues and those discussed earlier are of some concern, and that 

a reduction in the number of units or their size would help to overcome them 
by allowing more room to provide the necessary ancillary accommodation 
required, i.e. private gardens and parking, thereby providing a higher quality 
scheme, it is not considered that they would be sufficient to justify a refusal of 
the application, which in general accords with the minimum policy and 
guidance requirements.  

 
Trees 

 
54. As highlighted above, there are a number of protected trees on the site and 

on immediately adjoining land. All but four would be retained leaving: the large 
Scots Pines to the site frontage and Cypress, albeit these would be lowered to 
form a hedge; a further Scots Pine in the middle of the site; and a Poplar and 
three Silver Birches to the rear. Those removed are a Scots Pine and conifer 
to the site frontage, and a Poplar and Weeping Willow in the centre of the site. 
In addition to these retained trees it is proposed to plant a further 13, the 
majority of which would be within the public areas of the site, together with 
soft landscape planting which would need to be maintained by a management 
company. 

 
55. Following extensive consultations with the Council’s Tree Specialists, the 

scheme’s layout has been revised with all buildings now outside of root 
protection areas. However, special ground protection measures and surfacing 
will be required in some areas, most notably at the main site access from 
Valley Road which must pass over the root protection areas of a number of 
retained trees. A detailed Arboricultural Impact Assessment (AIA) has been 
submitted in support of the amended scheme. This has been reviewed by the 

128



Council’s Tree Specialist who has raised no objection subject to the content 
and recommendations of this assessment being followed in full. A condition to 
this effect is recommended. 

 
56. Some concern has been raised by the Council’s Ecologist with regards to 

ground level changes within the Root Protection Area (RPA) of retained trees 
as part of flood prevention works. Whilst it is proposed to make some modest 
level alterations, these will not be within the RPA of the relevant trees, which 
will be protected from the level changes by a retaining wall around the edge of 
the RPA. 

 
Parking & Highway Matters 

 
57. Allocated parking to meet the Council’s ‘Residential Parking Standards’ SPD 

is provided, principally in the form of formalised parking spaces ‘on-street’ 
rather than within the curtilage of each unit. There is also sufficient room to 
provide informal visitor parking within the site, albeit not formally marked out. 

 
58. In general the site layout is acceptable in terms of vehicle manoeuvring, 

although space is tight in a few places, such as the aisle width in front of Plot 
7 and at the main site entrance. Whilst this would not raise any concerns were 
it to be only serving a couple of dwellings, it is required to serve eleven and 
would be far busier than a normal driveway access. However, the ability to 
widen this access is compromised by the location of protected Scots Pines at 
the site frontage which are to be retained and form an important element of 
the street scene. On balance therefore, whilst not ideal, that proposed is 
acceptable. A viewed backed up by the lack of objection from Hampshire 
Highways. 

 
59. Other highway concerns raised by those who have commented on the 

application relate to contractor parking and possible damage to highway 
verges. These concerns are noted and the recommended construction 
management condition requires details of contractor parking, and loading / 
unloading of deliveries to be provided and agreed prior to works commencing. 
Whilst the Council cannot prevent contractors from parking on the highway, 
there should be more than sufficient space on site to accommodate parking, 
site office, materials storage, etc. 

 
Residential Amenity 

 
60. When considering residential amenity there are two areas to look at: the 

impact of the proposed development upon existing neighbouring properties; 
and the amenity of future occupiers of the development. 

 
61. Some concern has been raised by those objecting to the application in 

relation to overlooking and loss of privacy. In this respect the properties most 
likely to be impacted are those in Cypress Grove to the east and Heathlands 
Close to the west. The proposed site layout ensures that the orientation of 
dwellings is such that their relationship to properties in Cypress Grove is 
perpendicular, together with a reasonable separation distance, thereby 

129



resulting in no overlooking or loss of privacy to those dwellings. With regards 
to neighbouring dwellings in Heathlands Close, whilst the rear of Plots 10 & 
11 do face the rears of Nos.20-24 Heathlands Close, the distance between 
these elevations at 25 and 29 metres exceeds the 22 metre minimum 
distance set out in the Council’s ‘Quality Places’ SPD. The site layout will 
result in some increased overlooking of neighbouring gardens, but this is not 
to any unacceptable extent and is something to be expected in suburban 
areas. 

 
62. In this respect therefore, and the other main amenity issues of light and 

outlook, whilst there will there will be some degree of impact upon 
neighbouring properties, it would not be to such an extent that it would be 
unreasonable in planning terms. As such, the proposed development does 
meet the requirements of the ‘Quality Places’ SPD and saved Policy 59.BE of 
the adopted Local Plan. Notwithstanding this, given the minimal garden sizes 
proposed, it is recommended that the usual permitted development rights 
which would allow extensions to the dwellings be removed in order to ensure 
sufficient usable external amenity space is maintained, and also to ensure 
that sufficient off-street parking is retained. Permitted development right in 
relation to the creation of hardstanding to the front of dwellings is also 
recommended for removal in order to protect the visual amenity of the 
development and quality of environment for future occupiers. 

 
63. Looking at the amenity of future occupiers of the proposed development, as 

has been discussed above, although garden sizes are smaller than those of 
existing neighbouring plots, in some cases significantly smaller, the majority 
meet the Council’s minimum standards and generally would receive sufficient 
day and sunlight. Whilst the proposed garden sizes are generally based on 
minimum standards, the scale of internal accommodation more than exceeds 
the nationally described space standards, which goes someway to 
compensating for the smaller scale external amenity space. 

 
64. With regards to issues of privacy, light and outlook, again whilst the site layout 

is relatively tight, there would be no unacceptable level of overlooking or loss 
of light. Equally, whilst the outlook from Plots 2a & 8 is somewhat impinged by 
the flank elevations of the neighbouring plots to their north and south, this is 
not to the extent that a strong argument could be made that the outlook from 
these plots is unacceptable. 

 
65. A further amenity issue to take into consideration is disturbance to 

neighbouring properties during the course of demolition and construction. This 
has been highlighted by those who have commented on the application and 
can be dealt with by way of suitably worded conditions requiring approval of a 
construction management plan and restrictions on working hours, etc. 

 
66. Overall therefore with regards to issues of amenity, the application does 

generally accord with the requirements of the ‘Quality Places’ SPD and saved 
Policy 59.BE of the adopted Local Plan. 

 
 

130



Drainage & Flooding 
 

67. Concerns have been raised in relation to both foul and surface water drainage 
issues which have affected properties on lower ground to the west of the site, 
in that the proposed development could exacerbate existing problems. 
Objections were also initially raised by both the Environment Agency (EA) and 
Hampshire County Council’s Flood and Water Management team (FWM) 
relating to a number of the proposed dwellings being within Flood Zones 2 & 3 
in which the north-western corner of the site falls. 

 
68. Saved Policy 45.ES relates to surface water disposal and states that 

“Development proposals must incorporate adequate measures for the 
disposal of surface water from the development including, where practicable, 
source control techniques and sustainable drainage systems, incorporating 
future maintenance of the system.” Following the initial objections from the EA 
and FWM, the developer undertook further site investigations and provided an 
updated Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy (FRA). These 
investigations established that the site’s ground conditions, which are 
predominantly clay, would make natural percolation or soakaways unviable. 
As such, it is proposed to use a system of tanked permeable paving which 
would filter the surface water, hold it in a tanked layer of aggregate 
underneath, before discharging it at a controlled rate into the existing surface 
water sewer in Valley Road. Calculations show that this system would half the 
current surface water flow from the site, thereby easing pressure on the local 
surface water system. 

 
69. Revisions were also made to the proposed site layout, which with the 

inclusion of some low retaining walls, moved the proposed dwellings out of 
Flood Zones 2 & 3. The revised FRA also demonstrates that the construction 
of these dwellings and retaining structures would not result in any further 
harm to neighbouring properties through dispersing of flood waters elsewhere. 
These layout revisions and updated FRA have been reviewed by the EA and 
FWM who have both lifted their original objections to the application, subject 
to conditions. 

 
70. With regards to foul drainage, whilst the application site is unlikely to be 

impacted by sewer flooding, given it sits on higher ground, concerns were 
raised that the development could add to current problems. Again, this has 
been investigated by the developer and their drainage consultant and a 
comparison made as to the likely foul water flows associated with the 
proposed development compared to the existing. These calculations show 
that the flows from a 35 bedroom care home would equate to approximately 
14 dwellings. That being the case, the proposed development for 12 units 
would result in a theoretical reduction in foul water flows into the local sewer 
network. Whilst it is accepted that the former care home has been closed for a 
number of years and prior to that was not at full occupancy, any assessment 
made must be based on a worst case scenario. Although currently closed, the 
care home could reopen without the need for any planning consent, meaning 
that foul drainage equivalent to 14 dwellings could be reintroduced to the local 
network. Given this flow rate is greater than that which would be produced by 

131



the proposed development’s 12 dwellings, it is considered that there would be 
no reasonable grounds to refuse the application in this respect, particularly as 
no objection has been raised by Southern Water. However, conditions 
requiring any final drainage scheme to be approved prior to commencement 
in consultation with Southern Water are recommended. 

 
Environmental Sustainability 

 
71. The Council’s ‘Environmentally Sustainable Development’ SPD requires all 

new dwellings to meet a minimum of code level 4 of the Code for Sustainable 
Homes together with a number of other mandatory requirements on water and 
energy conservation. However, the code has now been revoked with the 
intension that these requirements will be assessed by Building Regulations. 
Notwithstanding this, it is Council policy that any new dwellings must meet the 
equivalent of Code Level 4 with regards to water and energy conservation. 
This is secured via a planning condition. 

 
Nature Conservation 

 
72. As has been highlighted above in the Council’s Ecologist’s response, 

concerns are raised with regards to the amount of clearance already 
undertaken on site and proposals for further tree removal. Concerns have 
also been highlighted that the intended site layout and landscaping scheme 
leaves little room for worthwhile new tree or landscape planting, thereby 
resulting in a likely inability to ensure a net biodiversity gain as encouraged by 
the NPPF. 
 

73. Whilst it is disappointing that a substantial amount of site clearance was 
undertaken before any ecological surveys were undertaken, meaning the true 
extent of the development’s impact cannot be properly ascertained, the 
developer was within their rights to do this work. Although a number of trees 
are subject to preservation orders, this does not prevent the removal of any 
trees or planting which is not covered by the preservation orders. Equally, the 
site is not subject to any nature conservation designation or within close 
proximity to such a site. 
 

74. The concerns relating to a lack of space to provide suitable replacement 
planting to mitigate for that lost and a more naturalized SuDS drainage 
scheme are shared. However, these concerns are not considered to be 
sufficient to refuse the application and there is still scope to improve the 
proposed landscape planting scheme to provide some habitat enhancement, 
together with other enhancement measures which could be secured by 
conditions. 

 
Planning Obligations / Considerations 

 
75. In accordance with the guidance contained within the NPPF, Saved Policies 

74.H, 101.T, 147.OS and 191.IN of the adopted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 
Review (2001-2011), Policies DM32 and DM37 of the Submission Eastleigh 
Borough Local Plan 2011-2029, the Council’s ‘Planning Obligations’ SPD and 

132



the requirements of Regulation 122 of the Community Infrastructure 
Regulations, there is a requirement for developers’ contributions to ensure on 
and off-site provision for facilities and infrastructure made necessary by the 
development, or to mitigate against any increased need/pressure on existing 
facilities. 

 
76. Contributions / Obligations towards the provision of the following infrastructure 

have been agreed and would be secured via a Section 106 agreement index 
linked as per the Planning Obligations SPD and HCC requirements: 

 

 Community Infrastructure 

 Public Open Space & Play Provision 

 Local Green Space 

 Public Art 
 
77. The projects and measures identified for contribution expenditure will comply 

with the 3 tests set out in Regulation 122 of the Community Infrastructure 
Levy 2010, in that the monies would go towards the projects which are directly 
related to the development, and are fairly and reasonably related in scale and 
kind to the proposed development. The contributions would be index-linked to 
ensure the contributions rise in line with the costs of providing the identified 
projects/measures. The obligations sought are necessary to make the 
development acceptable in planning terms and to meet the needs generated 
by the new residents and the potential impact on existing services and 
facilities. 
 
Affordable Housing 
 

78. The proposed scheme for twelve units would usually be required to provide an 
equivalent of 20% affordable units, which in this instance would be rounded 
down to two dwellings. However, national policy provides an incentive for 
brownfield development on sites containing vacant buildings. Where a vacant 
building is brought back into any lawful use, or is demolished to be replaced 
by a new building, the developer should be offered a financial credit 
equivalent to the existing gross floorspace of relevant vacant buildings when 
the local planning authority calculates any affordable housing contribution 
sought. In this instance, whilst the total floor space of the proposed scheme 
does exceed the existing floor space of the former care home, it is only by a 
very modest amount of a few tens of square metres. This would mean any 
figure secured, together with the restrictions on where and how any monies 
secured can be utilised, could not be realistically used. 

 
Other Material Considerations 

 
79. An issue which has recently arisen is ‘nutrient neutrality’ and the impact 

additional waste water from residential development is having on important 
nature conservation sites such as the Solent. This essentially relates to 
drainage and how discharges from sewerage treatment plants are affecting 
the level of nutrients in the water, which is in turn impacting upon biodiversity. 
Natural England have advised on new residential development, there is 

133



currently uncertainty over whether mitigation will be required to address the 
existing levels of nitrogen and phosphorus input to the water environment 
causing eutrophication at the international sites of Solent & Southampton 
Water Special Protection Area (SPA) and Ramsar site and the Solent 
Maritime Special Area of Conservation (SAC). Therefore in light of this 
uncertainty and for confidence that the development will be deliverable, it is 
Natural England advice that proposed residential developments achieve 
nutrient neutrality. To this end, Natural England have published draft 
methodology to calculate nitrate levels and for new development recommend 
information is provided regarding the existing and predicted levels of nitrates 
leaching into the water environment to give a “nutrient budget”, and that this 
budget should be able to demonstrate no increase in nutrients, known as 
“nutrient neutrality”. Where an increase in nutrient levels is expected, Natural 
England advise mitigation should be devised prior to issuing a decision to 
offset this increase and ensure the protected habitats are protected. Following 
recent case law, the Council are no longer able to condition mitigation details 
be provided post permission being granted.  
 

80. The Council are currently considering the implications of this issue and how 
where needed, mitigation can be secured and delivered. Such mitigation 
could be direct through on-site sewage treatment provision, through 
upgrading existing sewage treatment works or reducing the amount of water 
used within the development; or indirect through the offsetting of nitrogen 
generation from development by taking land out of nitrogen intensive uses 
(e.g. agricultural uses including arable and livestock farming). For smaller 
development schemes, mitigation may take the form of contributions towards 
off-site measures. The impact, if any, will need to be set out within an 
Appropriate Assessment as required by Article 6 of the EC Habitats Directive 
1992, and interpreted into British law by the Conservation of Habitats and 
Species Regulations 2017. The Assessment is to be undertaken by the 
Council as the Competent Authority. Whilst this application can be referred to 
committee and a resolution to grant permission reached, the nutrient neutrality 
matter will need to be resolved prior to the decision being issued. The Council 
are reviewing the options for mitigation in consultation with Natural England. 
As part of the assessment, regard will need to be had to the impact of the 
existing care home. 
 

81. Notwithstanding this, as has been discussed above, it has been demonstrated 
that the foul sewerage flows resulting from the proposed development would 
be less than those of the 35 bedroom care home currently on site. That being 
the case, this would result in a reduction in overall flows, therefore resulting in 
less impact upon nutrient levels. As such, it is considered that the LPA can 
reasonably consider approving the proposed application without fear of 
adding to the present situation. Natural England has been consulted on this 
view and their response is awaited. 

 
Conclusion 

 
82. Closure of the Moorwood care home in 2014 and the lack of any viable 

interesting in reopening it is considered to demonstrate that the facility is 

134



surplus to requirements. As such, the proposed redevelopment of the site is 
considered to be acceptable in principle. Equally, a housing scheme would be 
suitable for the residential nature of the surrounding area. That being the 
case, a judgement needs to be made as to whether the scheme proposed is 
acceptable in terms of its design, impact upon the surrounding area and 
neighbouring occupiers, as well as the quality of environment created for 
future residents of the development. 

 
83. As discussed above, whilst the development does not quite meet minimum 

standards in some aspects, and there are a number of concerns with 
particular elements of the development which could be improved upon, these 
are not considered to be sufficient to justify a refusal of the application. On 
balance therefore, whilst these concerns remain, the application proposal is 
considered to meet the general requirements of the relevant saved policies of 
the adopted Local Plan and the Council’s supplementary planning documents, 
albeit a reduction in the number or size of units would allow for a number of 
these concerns to be better addressed. Notwithstanding this, the application is 
recommended for approval subject to: i) revisions to the site layout which will 
accommodate a bin collection area in an acceptable manner; and ii) the 
securing of planning obligations towards:- Community Infrastructure; Public 
Open Space & Play Provision, including towards the provision of Local Green 
Space; and Public Art; as well as the conditions listed above. 

 

135



 

136



CFH – Chandlers Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee Wednesday 19 June 
2019.

Application Number: H/19/85372
Case Officer: Rosie Rivers
Received Date: Friday 5 April 2019
Site Address: 85 HOCOMBE ROAD, CHANDLER'S FORD, EASTLEIGH, 

SO53 5QB
Applicant: Bright
Proposal: Two storey side and front extensions, single storey side 

extension, raised patio at Rear, front & rear dormers  and 
alterations to fenestration

Recommendation: REFUSE

CONDITIONS AND REASONS

1. The proposed development due to its scale, form and design would create a 
dominant and incongruous feature at odds with the appearance of the existing 
dwelling. The proposal would be out of keeping with the street scene and 
detrimental to the Arcadian character and visual amenity of the surrounding 
area. As such the proposed development is contrary to Saved Policies 59.BE 
and 181.LB of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2001-2011, Policy DM1 of the 
Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029, and Section 7 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework.

Note to Applicant: The application was refused following the assessment of the 
following plans: 544.PL.SITE, 544.PL.BLOCK, 544.PL.STREET, 544.PL.ENT, 
544PL.001, 544.PL.201, 544.PL.202, 544.PL.204, 544.PL.206, 544.PL.207, 
544.PL.208, 544.PL.212, 544.SU.001, 544.SU.002, 544.SU.004, 544.SU.005, 
544.SU.006, 544.SU.007 and 544.SU.008. . In accordance with paragraph 38 
of the National Planning Policy Framework (February 2019), Eastleigh Borough 
Council takes a positive approach to the handling of development proposals so 
as to achieve, whenever possible, a positive outcome and to ensure all 
proposals are dealt with in a timely manner.

Report:

This application has been referred to Committee at the request of Councillor Groves, 
Councillor Duguid and Councillor Broadhurst.  

Description of Application

1. The application proposes a two storey extension to the side of the property, a 
two storey infill extension to the front of the property, front and rear dormers 
and alterations to the fenestration and external materials.

137

Agenda Item 9



Site Characteristics

2. The site consists of a two storey detached dwelling located on the south of 
Hocombe Road. The property has parking to the front of the site and flat roof 
single storey elements at either side of the property. There are trees to the 
front and rear of the site. The trees to the rear of the property are protected by 
TPOs.

3. The surrounding area generally consists of detached dwellings set in large 
plots.

Relevant Planning History

H/17/81785 - Two and a half storey side extension, two storey front extension, 
raised patio at rear and roof and elevational alterations – refused 14/03/2018 
Appeal dismissed 23/07/2018

T/17/80689 – Fell 1no. Sweet Chestnut – Refuse tree consent 27/11/2017

T/09/65620 - Lopping of 1No. Ash to approximately 8 metres and 1No. 
Western Red Cedar to approximately 8 metres. Consent for tree works 
04/09/2009

T/04/52351 - Crown lift 1no. Oak by 4m and reduce branches by 2m, all to 
suitable growth points – Consent for tree works 05/11/2004

Z/07268/002/00 – First floor side extension – Permit 22/04/1983

Further applications for works to trees

Representations Received

11 Letters of support on the following grounds:
- In keeping with the character of the area
- No impact on neighbouring property
- Existing property needs to be updated 

15 letters of objection on the following grounds:
- Impact on street scene
- Not in keeping with the spacious character and low density of the 

area/ character of the area
- Excessive in scale and bulk, bear no relation to the scale of the 

existing building – combination of length, height and position 
- Limited changes to proposal
- Proposed is too bulky and dominant for site
- Contravenes the special policy area policy
- Impact on neighbour amenity 

o Overbearing
o Visually intrusive
o Loss of light

138



o Impact on patio and garden of no.83
o Overlooking, loss of privacy

- Proposed planting will cause damage to existing properties 
- Set a precedent for other development within the area

Consultation Responses

Council’s tree officer: No objection, subject to a condition. Further comments 
regarding the planting proposed on the boundary.

Chandlers Ford Parish Council: None received 

Policy Context:  Designation Applicable to Site

- Within Built-up Area Boundary
- Within Established Residential Area
- Hiltingbury and Hocombe Park Special Policy Area

Legislative provisions, development plan saved policies, emerging local 
plan policies, SPD’s and National planning policy

Legislative provisions:

4. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Section 38(6) 
of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 require a local planning 
authority determining an application to do so in accordance with the 
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The Development Plan

5. At the current time the Development Plan for the Borough comprises the 
Saved Policies within the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011) 
and the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (October 2013). The policies 
contained within the latter are not considered to be applicable to the particular 
development proposed as part of this application. 

The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011

6. The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011 (the adopted Local 
Plan) was adopted in May 2006. In November 2008, the Council submitted a 
list of proposed Saved Policies to the Secretary of State with a request that 
they be saved until they could be replaced by a new Local Development 
Framework. The following policies were saved and are considered to be of 
relevance to the development proposals: Saved policy 59.BE (promoting good 
design), 181.LB (Hiltingbury Special Policy Area), 104.T (Parking).

Emerging Local Plan Policies

Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029, July 2014:

139



7. The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 was submitted for examination 
in July 2014 but the Inspector concluded that insufficient housing was being 
provided for in the Plan and that it was unsound.  While this has not been 
withdrawn and remains a material consideration, it can therefore be 
considered to have extremely limited weight in the determination of this 
application. 

The Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036:

8. Following The Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 being 
found unsound, the Council has prepared the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 
2016-2036. The Plan has been subject to public consultation (Regulation 19), 
the period for which ran from 25 June until 8 August 2018, and has 
subsequently been submitted to the Secretary of State for examination (on 31 
October 2018) with hearings scheduled to take place in the autumn (between 
September and November). 

9. The other relevant policies of both the 2011-2029 and 2016-2036 plans 
essentially echo the requirements of those of the adopted local plan as listed 
above and are not therefore considered to effect the recommendation put 
forward.

Supplementary Planning Documents

- Supplementary Planning Document: Quality Places (November 2011)
- Supplementary Planning Document: Residential Parking Standards 

(January 2009)

National Planning Policy 

10.At a national level, The National Planning Policy Framework (the ‘NPPF’ or 
the ‘Framework’) is a material consideration of significant weight in the 
determination of planning applications. The National Planning Practice 
Guidance provides additional guidance in support of the Framework and 
should be afforded weight in the consideration of planning applications. 

Assessment of Proposal

Principle

11.The site is located within the urban edge where the principle of development 
is considered to be acceptable subject to the design and impact of the 
proposal in accordance with the relevant Local Plan policies and 
supplementary planning documents.

12.Policy 59.BE of the Local Plan requires development to take full and proper 
account of the context of the site including the character and appearance of 
the locality and be appropriate in mass, scale, materials, layout, design and 
siting. It also requires a high standard of landscape design, have a 
satisfactory means of access and layout for vehicles, cyclist and pedestrians, 

140



make provision for refuse and cycle storage and avoid unduly impacting on 
neighbouring uses through overlooking, loss of light, loss of outlook, noise 
and fumes.

13.Policy 181.LB states the redevelopment of plots will not be permitted unless 
all the following criteria are met:

I. The size of any proposed plot is not significantly smaller than those in 
the immediate vicinity of the site;

II. the proposal does not involve the loss or prejudice the retention of 
existing healthy mature trees on the site;

III. the design, siting, scale and proposed development is compatible with 
the Arcadian character of the locality and does not involve back land or 
tandem development; and 

IV. the proposal is accompanied by a detailed planting scheme designed 
to assimilate the development into its surroundings. 

Planning history 

14.The application follows the previously refused application H/17/81785. This 
application was for two storey extensions, roof alterations and dormers and 
alterations to the fenestration. The application was refused due to the scale, 
form and design of the proposed extensions. The proposal was considered to 
result in a dominant and incongruous feature with the existing dwelling and 
would be out of keeping with the street scene and character of the 
surrounding area. 

15.The application was subsequently dismissed at appeal. The Inspector 
considered that the proposal was substantial in scale due to its aggregate 
height, width and depth and would appear overly bulky and dominant in the 
street scene. The proposal was also not considered to sit comfortably with the 
host dwelling itself. The proposed front gable was considered to be 
disproportionately large. The Inspector concluded that the proposal is not 
acceptable in terms of its effect on the character and appearance of the host 
dwelling and its surroundings. The Inspector also considered that the impact 
on the neighbouring properties (no.83) garden and patio and study/bedroom 
windows would merit close examination if a further application were to be 
submitted.

16.The following changes have been made to the current application:
- The roof pitch has been altered to a 30 degree pitch, which results in 

the roof being 200mm lower than the refused application. The second 
floor accommodation has been removed from the proposal 

- The width of the two storey extension has been reduced at first floor by 
300mm

- Alterations have been made to the fenestration and garage door
- Alterations have been made to the materials
- Additional planting is proposed on the boundaries and additional 

planting has been carried out on the site 

141



Layout, design and impact on the character of the area

17.The application site lies within a low density residential area. The dwellings on 
Hocombe Road are mixed in terms of their form and design. 85 Hocombe 
Road is a two storey dwelling with flat roof single storey elements either side 
of the property. The neighbouring property no.83 is a bungalow, no.87 is a 
part two storey part single storey dwelling. 

18.There is a good size gap between the application dwelling and no.87 to the 
east with heavy screening when viewing the properties from the road. The 
siting of no.85 and 83 is much tighter with less planting. It is considered that 
this close positioning does not run counter to the low density and spacious 
character of the areas because of the single storey elements of both 
properties close to the mutual boundary.  

19.The proposed changes to the two storey extension have been carefully 
considered, however, the proposed modest changes have not overcome the 
concerns raised by the Planning Inspector. It is considered that the proposal 
would still be substantial in scale in terms of its aggregate height, width and 
depth and would appear as overly bulky and dominant in relation to the 
existing dwelling. 

20.The Planning Inspector considered that the spacing provided between the 
application site and no.83 was an important part of the street scene and the 
single storey additions at either side of these properties maintained the 
spacious character of the area. It is noted that the pitch of the roof has been 
altered and the width of the extension has been reduced by 300mm, however, 
these are not considered to be significant enough to address the Planning 
Inspectors concerns regarding the relationship with the neighbouring property 
and the impact on the street scene. It is therefore maintained that the 
proposal would be overly dominant and incongruous within the street scene 
especially due to the its relationship with the nearby flat roofed garage and 
low profile of the bungalow at no.83. 

21.Whilst it is accepted that there are two storey properties along Hocombe Road 
it is maintained that the proposed extension would be at odds with the 
prevailing character of the area especially when viewed in conjunction with 
the two neighbouring properties which are predominately single storey. This 
relationship is accentuated due to the close proximity of the extension to 
no.83. Whilst the design of the extension has been reduced, albeit only a 
small amount, the reasons set out in the appeal decision have not been 
overcome. The proposal is therefore considered to have a detrimental impact 
on the street scene and character of the surrounding area in conflict with 
saved Policy 59.BE of the adopted Local Plan. It is considered that the 
proposed development is not in keeping with the character of the locality in 
conflict with Policy 181.LB of the Local Plan.

22.Planting has been proposed on the boundary with the neighbouring property 
no.83 to help screen the proposed development. The details regarding the 

142



planting have been noted, however, concerns are raised that the ability for the 
landscaping to successfully grow is somewhat limited, and therefore 
successful screening cannot be assured. Notwithstanding this it is considered 
that the proposed planting to screen the proposal would not address the 
concerns raised above. 

Impact on residential amenity 

23.The proposed two storey extension would be positioned along the boundary 
with the neighbouring property no.83 Hocombe Road. This neighbouring 
property is a bungalow. 

24.The proposed two storey extension would maintain a separation distance of 
2.6m to the boundary with this neighbouring property and 3.5m (at first floor 
level) to the side of the garage/annexe room. The rear of the two storey 
extension would not extend beyond the rear of the neighbouring properties 
rear wall. It is considered that due to the separation distance between the 
proposed extension and the neighbouring property and the rear wall of the 
extension not extending beyond the neighbouring properties rear wall the 
proposal would not cause material harm in terms of over dominance. 

25. It is acknowledged that the proposed extension would be visible from the 
neighbouring properties garden area, however, it is noted that the 
neighbouring property has a reasonable sized amenity area and the proposed 
extension is not considered to be over dominant to the main private amenity 
space. 

26.Due to the orientation of the sun the proposed extension is not considered to 
result in a material loss of light to the neighbouring property. Concerns have 
been raised by the neighbouring property that the proposal would impact on 
the front garden area and west facing window. It is noted that the front garden 
area is used for parking and is not a main amenity space, it is considered that 
due to the orientation of the sun, the proposal would not result in a material 
loss of light  or overshadowing such that would warrant a reason for refusal on 
the current application. 

27.Concerns have been raised by the neighbouring property regarding 
overlooking from the front and rear facing windows and obscure glazed 
windows if they could be opened. These windows would face towards the 
front and rear of the application. There are currently first floor facing windows 
in the front and rear of the property which would provide similar views towards 
the neighbouring property and therefore the proposal is not considered to 
cause material harm in terms of overlooking from the proposed front and rear 
facing windows. It should also be noted that this is a normal relationship for 
properties within the urban area. The point regarding the obscure glazed 
windows could be address by a suitable planning condition if permission were 
to be granted.

28.The planning Inspector considered in his report 

143



29. ‘Nonetheless, the long section of a new roof high enough to accommodate 
second floor accommodation and directly facing the western flank of No. 83 
would be dominant in the outlook from the patio area and the areas of the 
garden nearest to it. In the event that further proposals come forward 
following the dismissal of this appeal, both this and the effect on the outlook 
from a study / bedroom in the western elevation of No. 83 would merit close 
examination.’ 

30.The application has been amended to remove the second floor 
accommodation from the proposal and alter the roof pitch of the proposed 
extension. The comments regarding the impact from the outlook from the 
patio area and garden closes to the extension and study/bedroom window 
have been further considered and whilst concerns are maintained above 
regarding the size and scale of the proposed extension it is considered that 
due to the positioned of the proposed extension it would not result in material 
harm in terms of loss of outlook to the neighbouring property to warrant a 
reason for refusal.

Impact on trees

31.No arboricultural information has been submitted with the application. There 
are significant trees to the front and rear of the site. There are also TPO trees 
on the site. 

32.Following consultation with the Council’s Tree Officer no objection is raised to 
the application if care is given to the existing trees during construction. A 
condition has been recommended for a tree protection plan if permission were 
to be granted. 

Conclusion

33.The proposal is therefore considered to result in a proposal that is overly 
dominant and would be an incongruous feature at odds with the appearance 
of the existing dwelling. The proposal would be out of keeping with the street 
scene and detrimental to the Arcadian character and visual amenity of the 
surrounding area in conflict with Policy 59.BE and 181.LB of the Local Plan. It 
is considered that the proposed changes to the extensions have not 
overcome the previous reasons for refusal or the dismissed appeal.

144



CHANDLER'S FORD AND HILTINGBURY LOCAL AREA 
COMMITTEE 

Wednesday, 19 June 2019 

CHANDLERS FORD AND HILTINGBURY VARIOUS ORDER REPORT

Report of the Senior Engineering Specialist 

Recommendation

It is recommended that the Chandlers Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee 
approve the implementation of the ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions on Meon 
Crescent as shown in plan 1 on page four.

Summary

An amendment to the current consolidated Chandlers Ford and Hiltingbury Traffic 
Regulation Order (TRO) to prevent obstructive parking has been proposed and consulted 
on. The amendment proposed is as set out above.

Statutory Powers

Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984; Traffic Management Act 2004.
Legal Agreements

Agency Agreement dated 30 March 2009 between Hampshire County Council and 
Eastleigh Borough Council.

1.0 Strategic Implications 

1.1 This report addresses a number of the strategic objectives: Tackling 
Congestion by dealing with inappropriate parking and helping to create an 
Excellent Environment for all.

2.0 Consultation

145

Agenda Item 10



Eastleigh Borough Council

2.1 The formal consultation was advertised in the Hampshire Independent 
newspaper, on the Eastleigh Borough Council (EBC) website, the HCC Public 
Notices Portal and on public notices placed throughout affected areas (from 
November 2018 to December 2018). 

2.2 A total number of four of comments were received regarding the proposal, and 
these are described below.

3.0 Summary of Comments

3.1 This section summarises the responses received from residents in relation to 
the location.   The Committee is asked to consider the comments received, in 
order to inform their decision on the implementation, or otherwise, of the 
Traffic Regulation Order.

3.2 Meon Crescent

3.3. The restriction for Meon Crescent has been proposed to address the issues of: 
a) Regular obstructive parking at the cul-d-sac entrance, 
b) Inconsiderate parking on the footpath of the cul-d-sac and 
c) The obstruction of private accesses. 

3.4 Residents who live on the spur of Meon Crescent had expressed concern about the 
impact of parked vehicles restricting access to their homes and parking on the 
pavement. Visually and mobility impaired residents were on occasions having to be 
dropped off by taxis at the end of the cul-d-sac as the taxis could not pass the 
parked vehicles and the residents were left to walk down the middle of the road to 
reach their homes. 

3.5 This proposal received four responses, three of which were opposed to the 
proposal and claimed there were no parking issues to be addressed.   Despite 
assurances that the obstructive parking was not an issue and that local residents 
would park considerately no changes in behaviour were observed.  The fourth 
respondent indicated that the obstructive parking is still occurring and that issues 
outlined in para 3.4. still remain.  This also gives rise to the concern that should an 
emergency vehicle need access to the area it may not always be possible to do so. 
As a result of this concern the proposal is for the restrictions to remain, as 
advertised.

146



Eastleigh Borough Council

Plan 1 Meon Crescent as advertised 

4.0 Financial Implications

4.1 The cost of the various location TRO, and associated signs and road 
markings, of which this site is a part, is approximately £4000 and are funded 
through the Local Area Committee budget.  

4.2 Any amendments extending restrictions or new proposals will require the 
Traffic Regulation Order to be re-advertised and further consultation to be 
carried out. 

5.0 Risk Assessment

5.1 The risk is considered to be low as the objections have been considered and 
where appropriate, the points raised were used to amend the proposals 
before the order is taken forward to be made permanent.

6.0 Equality and Diversity Implications

6.1 The Equality Act is relevant to the decision in this report as the decision 
relates to eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity, or 
fostering good relations between different people in the following ways:  The 
implementation of this order will result in an improvement for people with a 
visual impairment and mobility problems and their needs have taken 
precedence over those who objected. A full Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) 
has not been carried out, because while there are some equalities impacts, it 
is not proportionate to carry out a full EIA.

147



Eastleigh Borough Council

7.0 Conclusion

The proposed Traffic Regulation Order to introduce new waiting restrictions in 
Chandlers Ford and Hiltingbury received three objections to Meon Crescent 
and one comment supporting the proposals at Meon crescent. This report 
takes the comments into account and makes a recommendation to implement 
the restrictions as advertised due to the on-going parking issues, their impacts 
upon local disabled residents and potential safety implications for access by 
emergency vehicles.

DAVID PICKETT
Senior Engineering Specialist

Date: 10 May 2019
Contact Officer: David Pickett 
Tel No:
e-mail: david.pickett@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: None

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.

148



Eastleigh Borough Council
149



This page is intentionally left blank



CHANDLER'S FORD AND HILTINGBURY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

Wednesday, 19 June 2019 

NORTH MILLERS DALE TRAFFIC STUDY

Report of the Senior Engineering Specialist

Recommendations

It is recommended that : 

(1) Speed Limit Reminders (SLRs) and Speed Data Recorders (SDRs) be deployed on 
North Millers Dale. 

(2) The road markings to highlight the presence of pedestrian crossing points be 
implemented as indicated in photograph 3 on page seven; and

(3) Parking restriction measures are implemented as per figure 2 page 7 to prevent 
parking adjacent to the blind bend. 

Summary

The proposal is to reinforce the current speed limit using a range of measures including;

 the use of an electronic sign which shows drivers their speed and reminds them of 
the signed limit

 road markings to help highlight pedestrian crossing points and give the impression 
that the road narrows so as to encourage lower vehicle speeds

 parking restrictions to enable improved visibility for motorists joining the main road 
through the estate.

Statutory Powers
Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984; Traffic Management Act 2004.

Legal Agreements
Agency Agreement dated 30 March 2009 between Hampshire County Council and 
Eastleigh Borough Council.

Strategic Implications 

1. This report addresses a number of the strategic objectives: Tackling Congestion 
and associated pollution on key commuter routes, and helping to create an 
Excellent Environment for All. 

151

Agenda Item 11



Eastleigh Borough Council

2. Introduction

2.1  North Millers Dale is a distributor road through the North Milers Dale estate 
linking to Hursley Road at one end and Flexford Road at the other. The road is 
made up of a series of sweeping bends and is subject to a 30 mph limit. There 
are nine road junctions and six ‘across estate’ footways emerging on to it. This 
road is also a bus route and signed as a recommended route for cyclists. Within 
the length of this road there are three uncontrolled pedestrian crossing points 
with islands on the centre line. The centre line is marked throughout the road’s 
length and on the longest bend at approximately the mid-point of North Millers 
Dale, a bend warning sign has been used with a max speed 25mph sub plate.  

2.2 Due to the way in which North Millers Dale is connected it provides an 
opportunity for drivers to ‘miss out’ a busy intersection of Hursley Road, 
Hiltingbury Road and Flexford Road; therefore the potential for using North 
Millers Dale as a short cut is present, with clear evidence that the route is used 
regularly for this purpose. 

2.3 This plan of North Millers Dale shows the location of complaints about speeding 
traffic; each coloured dot represents one complaint (the coloured dot within the 
residential closes were issues with an overgrown hedge and an obstructed 
access)

 

Figure1 Plan showing complaint locations

152



Eastleigh Borough Council

3.0 Speeding Issues

3.1 In recent years eleven complaints from residents have been received by 
Eastleigh Borough Council, all relating to the speed of traffic on North Millers 
Dale. Notably the complaints have all indicated locations close to the side roads. 
This suggests that, to those emerging from the side roads, the perception of 
speeds of vehicles on North Millers Dale whilst not necessarily exceeding the 
30mph limit may still appear to be uncomfortably fast. 

Whilst measures in recent years have helped to address speed concerns, the 
increased popularity of the Hiltonbury Farmhouse public house and restaurant  is 
resulting in patrons parking on North Millers Dale when the alternative parking is 
full. This has meant that at times driver’s forward visibility is obscured. It is 
therefore considered that continuing to use measures to encourage lower speeds 
will help to ensure the road retains its current low accident record.    

3.2 Enquiries made with Hampshire County Council also showed that the complaints 
received with regard to this road related to the speed of traffic.

4.0 Parking Issues

4.1 Information received from residents’ via a local councillor expressing concerns 
about parking around the Hiltonbury Farmhouse area, are shown in photograph 1 
below.

Photograph 1 Vehicles parked on North Millers Dale

Whilst less evident in this photo the camper van is parked close to a blind bend and 
junction. Drivers travelling north would be unable to see if it is safe to cross on to the 
southbound side of the road to pass the camper van (as shown in photo 2, below). 

153



Eastleigh Borough Council

The positioning of this van is also having a detrimental effect on the visibility for 
drivers emerging from the side road (see below). The driver in photograph 3 is not 
only obstructing sight lines but also the footway.

 

Photograph 2 Photograph 3

4.2 This highlights the concern that parking which occurs in close proximity to a bend 
could lead to collisions. The risk appears to have increased as the restaurant has 
become more popular and is therefore expected to be an ongoing issue.

4.3 Checks have been made on the collision history of the road with no recorded 
injury accidents in the last five years. The proposals in this report reflect the 
changing circumstances on site and are designed to mitigate the increased level 
of risk.  

5.0 Proposed solutions to speed and parking Issues

5.1 To deal with the residents’ concerns regarding speeding traffic, it is proposed to 
add this location to the list of sites which use the speed limit reminders and 
speed data recorders.  

5.2 The use of road markings to highlight the presence of highway features is a 
common practice for influencing driver behaviour. Road markings used to 
highlight the presence of the pedestrian crossing points giving the impression 
that the road narrows, are found to have a positive effect in reducing vehicle 
speeds. The proposed markings are indicated below on a modified photograph 
(Photograph 3). The white lining gives the impression the road is narrower, 
thereby causing drivers to slow down.

154



Eastleigh Borough Council

Photograph 3 modified to indicate where the proposed road markings would go. 
These would be white lines highlighting the presence of the pedestrian crossing 
point.

Proposed solutions regarding parking concerns

5.2 The summer months of 2018 saw an increase in trade as the Hiltonbury 
farmhouse was rebranded and was subject to a wider advertising campaign. As 
a result, overspill parking is now occurring on North Millers Dale, some of which 
is close to bends, as previously highlighted in this report. 

Some of the overspill parking on North Millers Dale was seen to be causing a 
hazard to other road users. It is recommended that parking restrictions be 
implemented where on street parking is detrimental to road safety  Figure 2 
below shows the extent of proposed measures to counter the inappropriate 
parking.  The location will continue to be monitored to ensure measurers remain 
appropriate to the location.

5.3 The Traffic Management Department at Hampshire County Council has been 
contacted and has confirmed it has no objections to the recommended solutions 
in this report.

155



Eastleigh Borough Council

Figure 2 Proposed Parking Restrictions

6.0 Financial Implications

6.1 Installing the road markings (white lines to highlight the island locations) will cost 
approximately £250 for all three locations, if undertaken whilst other lining works 
are being implemented in the area.

6.2 Deploying the reactive signs will cost £60 per deployment.   They are used for 
short periods only in order to remain effective.  This can be a one-off deployment 
or, if speed is found to be a regular occurrence, the location can be retained on 
the Chandlers Ford list of Speed Limit Reminder (SLR) and Speed Data 
Recorder (SDR) sites so that the speed limit reminder can be used annually.

6.3 Developing and implementing a legal order to prevent inappropriate parking will 
cost approximately £2500 (dependant on the number of objections).

7.0 Funding for these works 

7.1 The works have been priced as individual packages, allowing the Local Area 
Committee to choose which elements to take forward. Section 106 funds held by 
the area committee should be considered to see if they could be used for these 
purposes. If no S106 contributions are available but the committee wishes to 
take these measures forward, an option would be to combine the lining works 
with next year’s parking restriction works in the area, thereby reducing the cost of 
these measures.

156



Eastleigh Borough Council

8.0 Risk Assessment

8.1 If taken forward, the public would be consulted on these proposals via the press 
adverts, notification on the Eastleigh Borough Council website and by on street 
notices. 

9.0 Equality and Diversity Implications

The Equality Act is relevant to the decision in this report in that the proposed 
measures will have a positive impact on those with mobility issues, advancing 
equality of opportunity, or fostering good relations between different people.  A 
specific Equality Impact Assessment has not been carried out as this would not 
be proportionate to the measures proposed.  Enhancing road safety has 
implications for equality as young people, those on lower incomes, frail elderly, 
disabled people and women (who are more likely still to be walking with young 
children) are all more likely to be pedestrians and adversely affected by speed. 
On this basis, these measures promote equality amongst the travelling public.  

10.0 Conclusion

10.1 The measures are aimed at raising awareness amongst drivers and 
encouraging a change in behaviour. The parking restriction measures help to 
maintain road safety for all road users and will need to be monitored to ensure 
the restriction remains proportional to the parking issue. 

David Pickett             SENIOR ENGINEERING SPECIALIST

Date: 10 May 2019
Contact Officer: David Pickett
Tel No: 02380688000
e-mail: david.pickett@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: None

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.

List Background Papers None.

157



This page is intentionally left blank



APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2019/20

Chandler's Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee

Name of Organisation: CHANDLER'S FORD COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION

2018-19 
Representative(s):

Cllr D Pragnell

Contact Officer: Min Partner 

Committee: Chandler's Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee

Terms of reference 
and objectives of 
organisation:

To promote the benefit on the inhabitants of Chandler's 
Ford and the neighbourhood, to advance education, to 
provide facilities in the interests of social welfare, recreation 
and leisure and to improve, maintain and manage the 
affairs of the Community Centre.

Key areas of interest and 
topical Issues for the 
organisation:

To provide facilities for and encourage members of the 
Association to participate in any or all of the following 
activities:-  whist, bridge, table tennis, music appreciation, 
Scrabble, social activities, dressmaking, play reading, 
sequence dancing and rambling.  To provide facilities for 
affiliated bodies to hold their meetings and activities.  To 
provide a source of income for the Association by the letting 
of the facilities of the Community Centre.

No of meetings per year:

Decided at the AGM.

Usual time of meeting(s):

Meetings are  held at the Community 
Centre and start at 7.00 pm unless 
otherwise advised.  Meetings are split 
between Council and an Executive 
Committee

Normal amount of 
notice given of 
meeting(s):

Desired skills, qualities, 
knowledge or experience 
Members should have:

No particular skills required.

Details of any training 
provided:

None.

Details of anticipated 
workload:
eg will member attend 
meeting only or be 
involved in other work? 

No particular workload envisaged.  The member would 
attend Council and Executive Committee meetings and 
would hopefully provide the link between us and the E.C.C. 
should one be required.

Name and address of 
contact for organisation:

Mr G Partridge  
Chairman
Chandler's Ford Community Association
Community Centre
Hursley Road   Chandler's Ford SO53 2FT

159

Agenda Item 12



APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2019/20

Chandler's Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee

Name of Organisation: HILTINGBURY COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION

2018-19 
Representative(s):

Mr J Duguid

Contact Officer: Min Partner

Committee: Chandler's Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee

Terms of reference 
and objectives of 
organisation:

To build and manage a new community centre for the 
benefit of local residents.  The Association is a non political 
organisation and it is important that it remains independent 
and impartial to issues of race, religion, politics and all other 
forms of bias.

Key areas of interest and 
topical Issues for the 
organisation:

To provide a new youth facility and range of social, sport 
and recreational and educational activities for all ages.

No of meetings per year:

Decided at the AGM.

Usual time of meeting(s):

Last Tuesday of every other month

Normal amount of 
notice given of 
meeting(s):

Desired skills, qualities, 
knowledge or experience 
Members should have:

No particular skills required, but there is a need for non-
political impartiality.

Details of any training 
provided:

None

Details of anticipated 
workload:
eg will member attend 
meeting only or be 
involved in other work? 

Member would act as a link between the Community 
Association and the Council.

Name and address of 
contact for organisation:

Secretary
Hiltingbury Community Association
The Hilt, Hiltingbury Recreation Ground
Hiltingbury Road, Chandler's Ford
Hampshire SO53 5NP

160



APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2019/20

Chandler's Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee

Name of Organisation: NORTH MILLERS DALE COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION

2018-19 
Representative(s):

Cllr P Holden-Brown

Contact Officer: Min Partner

Committee: Chandler's Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee

Terms of reference 
and objectives of 
organisation:

The Committee should have 6 Members - 3 from Eastleigh 
Baptist Church, 1 from the Council and 2 from a Residents 
Association.  The objective is to supervise letting 
arrangements when not used by the Church's sub-tenant for 
a kindergarten.

Key areas of interest and 
topical Issues for the 
organisation:

Adequate availability/opportunity for local community and 
private use.

No of meetings per year:

3 or 4

Usual time of meeting(s):

8.00  pm

Normal amount of 
notice given of 
meeting(s):

2/3 weeks

Desired skills, qualities, 
knowledge or experience 
Members should have:

Ability to mediate.  Some knowledge of running a public hall 
an advantage.

Details of any training 
provided:

Details of anticipated 
workload:
eg will member attend 
meeting only or be 
involved in other work? 

Possibly.

Name and address of 
contact for organisation:

Mrs Doreen Lewry  
North Millers Dale Community Association
8 Weavers Place
Chandler's Ford
SO53 1TU   

161



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	6 Local Area Manager's Report and  Items from Member Working Group
	Item 6 - Appendix 1
	Item 6 - Appendix 2
	Item 6 - Appendix 3
	CFH SLR ( 3530 )   (20/30/40 mph)
	CFH17						09/07/18 –23/07/18�Winchester Rd, Chandler’s Ford – LC21 - South-westbound 		30MPH
	CFH8						                 23/07/18 - 06/08/18�Hiltingbury Road, Chandlers Ford – LC43 – Eastbound traffic			30MPH
	CFH15						06/08/18 – 20/08/18�Hursley Road, Chandlers Ford - Southbound traffic – LC14		     30MPH
	CFH36						                20/08/18 - 03/09/18�Hursley Rd, Chandlers Ford – LC97 – Opposite side - Southbound traffic		30MPH
	CFH25						                03/09/18 – 17/09/17�Winchester Road, Chandlers Ford - Northeast bound traffic  - LC74			 30MPH
	CFH18						             17/09/18 – 01/10/18�Park Road, Chandlers Ford - Southbound traffic – LC 12 			                  30MPH
	CFH33 					            	                 01/10/18 -15/10/18�Winchester Road, Chandlers Ford – LC73 – SE bound traffic	                                        30MPH
	CFH10						             15/10/18 – 29/10/18�Bodycoats Road , Chandlers Ford - North-westbound traffic - LC28		                  30MPH
	CFH25						                29/10/18 – 12/11/18�Winchester Road, Chandlers Ford - Northeast bound traffic - LC74			 30MPH
	CFH17						12/11/18 –26/11/18�Winchester Rd, Chandler’s Ford – LC21 - South-westbound 		30MPH
	 CFH32						               26/11/18 – 10/12/18� Hiltingbury Road, Chandlers Ford - Westbound traffic - LC 44			30MPH
	CFH10						             10/12/18 – 24/12/18�Bodycoats Road , Chandlers Ford - North-westbound traffic - LC28		                  30MPH
	CFH11						                24/12/18 - 07/01/19�Oakmount Road, Chandlers Ford - Southbound traffic -  LC34 			30MPH
	CFH25						                07/01/19 – 21/01/19�Winchester Road, Chandlers Ford -  Northeast bound traffic - LC74			 30MPH
	CFH37						                07/01/19 – 21/01/19�Baddesley Road, Chandlers Ford -  South-westbound traffic – LC24			 30MPH

	Item 6 -  Appendix 4
	��HCC SLR1(1297)  (30/40 mph)��� 
	CFH35						               09/07/18 - 23/07/18�Hursley Road, Chandlers Ford – LC37 – Southbound traffic			30MPH
	ELAC12						                  23/07/18 –06/08/18�Woodside Avenue, Eastleigh – Northbound  LC41				40MPH
	Slide Number 4
	CFH21						                 20/08/18 – 03/09/18� Winchester Rd, Chandler’s Ford  - Southbound traffic - LC 35	                                          30MPH
	HEWEB34						                  03/09/18 - 17/09/18�Kings Copse Avenue, Hedge End LC43 - Southbound				40MPH
	Slide Number 7
	HEWEB55					                                    01/10/18 - 15/10/18�Moorhill Road, West End,LC79 -Northbound					40MPH
	HEWEB57						15/10/18 – 29/10/18�High Street, West End – LC76 - Westbound 				   30MPH
	CFH1 							29/10/18-12/11/18�Bodycoats Road, Chandlers Ford – LC 6 – Northeast bound traffic			  30MPH
	Slide Number 11
	ELAC7							26/11/18-10/12/18�Chestnut Avenue, Eastleigh - Westbound LC24			                      30MPH
	ELAC16						                  10/12/18 - 24/12/18�Eastbound – Allbrook Hill, LC8						  30MPH
	CFH30						              24/12/18 – 07/01/19�Templars Way, Chandlers Ford – LC 17 – Northwest bound traffic 		                   40MPH
	Slide Number 15
	CFH9						                21/01/19 - 04/02/19�Hiltingbury School, Hiltingbury  Rd, Chandlers Ford – LC61 – Westbound traffic	30MPH
	HEWEB9						                04/02/19 - 18/02/19�Kings Copse Avenue LC17 or 16 - Southbound					40MPH
	CFH12�Bournemouth Road, Chandlers Ford – LC49 North bound Traffic
	BIFOHH1�Winchester Road, Fair Oak – LC36 North bound Traffic
	BHH8						18/03/19 - 01/04/19	�Hamble Lane, Hamble, Southbound Traffic – LC131, 											30MPH
	ELAC14						                  01/04/19 - 15/04/19�Twyford Road, Eastleigh - Northbound -  LC49				30MPH  
	HEWEB36						                  15/04/19 - 29/04/19�Bursledon Rd, Hedge End LC8C - Northbound				 30MPH
	Slide Number 23
	CFH34						                  13/05/19 - 27/05/19�Merdon Avenue, Chandlers Ford  LC32 - Northbound				30MPH
	BHH9						             27/05/19-10/06/19�Dodwell Lane, Bursledon - Northbound – LC6				30MPH
	HEWEB40						                                        �                                                                                                                                           10/06/19-24/06/19�Locke Road, Hedge End - North-Eastbound –  LC6                                                                          30MPH
	ELAC3						                24/06/19 - 08/07/19            Derby Road, Eastleigh - Eastbound – LC9					30MPH

	Item 6 - Appendix 5
	HCC SLR2 (2084)     (20/30/40 mph)
	ELAC6						               09/07/18 - 23/07/18�Derby Road, Eastleigh - Westbound - LC27				                   	30MPH
	CFH36						    23/07/18 - 06/08/18   Hursley Rd, Chandlers Ford – LC97 - Southbound traffic		                            30MPH
	CFH13					                                   06/08/18 – 20/08/18�Sutherlands Way, Chandlers Ford , Southbound Traffic – LC 13 			30MPH
	BHH27                                                                                                 20/08/2018-03/09/2018�Dodwell Lane, Bursledon – LC23 – Northbound Traffic                                           30MPH
	BFOHH22						            03/09/18 - 17/09/18�Alan Drayton Way, Bishopstoke  -  Westbound LC27		                                     30MPH
	CFH26					                                    17/09/18 - 01/10/18�Oakmount Road, Chandlers Ford –LC25 – Northbound traffic		                    30MPH
	HEWEB54					                                    01/10/18 - 15/10/18�Moorgreen Road, West End –LC18 – Westbound traffic		                                        30MPH
	BHH24						                15/10/18 - 29/10/18�Abbey Hill, Netley, Southbound – LC17 					30MPH
	ELAC5						            29/10/18 - 12/11/18�Nightingale Avenue, Eastleigh -  Westbound LC13		              	                                    30MPH
	BIFOHH16					                                12/11/18 - 26/11/18�Botley Road, Horton Heath  -  Northbound LC21		                                     30MPH
	HEWEB56						            26/11/18 - 10/12/18�Upper Northam Drive, Hedge End  -  Westbound LC13		                                     30MPH
	HEWEB10						           10/12/18 - 24/12/18�Winchester Street, Botley - South-eastbound  LC24 			               30MPH
	ELAC15					                                      24/12/18 - 07/01/19�Shakespeare Road, Eastleigh – Eastbound-  LC23				20MPH
	ELAC1						         07/01/19 - 21/01/19�Broadlands Avenue, Eastleigh - Southbound LC24				30MPH
	BIFOHH27						            21/01/19 - 04/02/19�Church Road, Bishopstoke – LC19   �South Facing – Northbound Traffic		 			30MPH
	CFH6						                04/02/19 -18/02/19�Brownhill Road, Chandlers Ford – LC12 – Northwest bound traffic			30MPH
	HEWEB39						                 18/02/19- 04/03/19�Allington Lane (by entrance to IVCP) Eastbound – LC17				40MPH
	ELAC8						                04/03/19 - 18/03/19�Nightingale Avenue, Eastleigh - Eastbound -  LC34				30MPH
	BIFOHH16						            18/03/19 - 01/04/19�Botley Road, Horton Heath - Northbound LC21		                                     30MPH
	HEWEB6						                01/04/19 - 15/04/19�Swaythling Road, West End - North-westbound –  LC31				30MPH
	BIFOHH15�Mortimers Lane, Horton Heath – LC18 �West bound Traffic
	BHH25						                29/04/19 - 13/05/19�Hound Way, Netley  - Westbound - LC26					40MPH
	HEWEB32						                  13/05/19 - 27/05/19�Wildern Lane, Hedge End - Northbound –  LC9		                                       20MPH
	BHH12					        	                27/05/19 - 10/06/19�Bridge Road, Bursledon - Eastbound – LC60 					30MPH
	BIFOHH6						            10/06/19 - 24/06/19�Winchester Road, Fair Oak  -  Southbound LC35		                                     30MPH
	HEWEB61						            24/06/19 - 08/07/19�Maddoxford Lane, Boorley Green  -  ??bound LC??		                                     30MPH
	HEWEB62						            08/07/19 - 22/07/19�Winchester Road, Boorley Green  - Northbound - post		                                     30MPH

	Item 6 - Appendix 6

	8 Planning Application - 9 Valley Road, Chandler's Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 1GQ
	Item 8 - Appendix 1

	9 Planning Application - 85 Hocombe Road, Chandler's Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 5QB
	10 Chandler's Ford and Hiltingbury Various Order Report
	11 North Millers Dale Traffic Study
	12 Appointments to Outside Bodies

